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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Zuari Infraworld India Limited, Bangalore.

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Zuari Infraworld
India Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2018, the Profit
and Loss Statement (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information (herein after referted to as "standalone Ind AS financial
statements".

Management’s Responsibility for the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial petformance
including other comprehensive income, cash flows and the changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act and the Guidance Note on Accounting
for Real Estate Transactions issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

This responsibility also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting the frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that wete operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting recotds, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made there under.,

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requitements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
m the standalone Ind AS financial statements. The procedutes selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial controls relevant to the Company’s prepatation of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that ate
appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by Company’s Ditrectors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India including Ind AS, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March,
2018, its loss including other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in 'Annexure-A' a
statement on the matters specified in Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the said Order.

(2))  As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a.) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b.) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as appears from our examination of those books.

(c.) the Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss Statement including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d.) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the
Guidance Note on Real Estate Transactions (for entities to whom Ind AS is applicable)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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On the basis of written representations teceived from the directors as on 31 March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31
Match, 2018, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in 'Annexure-B' annexed to this report; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s repott in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us :

(t) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in 1its standalone Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 29.2 to the standalone Ind
AS financial statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts.

(iii.) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

o .
Coaoarages - - F

K P SRINIVAS

Place of signature: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 21% May, 2018 M.No.208520
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report of the even date to the members of
Zuati Infraworld India Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year

ended 31 March 2018,
O (8 The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Propetty, Plant and equipment.

(b) Property, plant and equipment have not been physically verified by the management
during the year. However according to the information and explanations given to us,
there is a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is teasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. '

(o) According to the information and explanation given to us by the company, the title

(1ir)

(iv)

)

deeds of immovable propetty of the company which is part of the inventory is held by
the Company in its own name. As stated in the Note 13 of standalone Ind AS financial
statements the immovable property has been mortgaged with the banks to secure the
loans taken.

The Company does not carry inventories of the nature covered by Ind AS 2. Thus, paragraph
3(1) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@)

(b)

©

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of
loans granted by the company to one party covered in the register maintained under
section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, (total loan amount granted Rs.11,15,82,714/-
and balance outstanding (fair value) as at balance sheet date Rs.7,78,00,142/-) are not
prejudicial to the company’s interest on account of the fact that the loans have been
granted at an interest rate of 14% per annum which is commensurate with the cost of
funds to the company.

According to the information and explanations furnished to us, the schedule of
repayment of principal and payment of interest is stipulated and as at the Balance Sheet
date no principal or interest was due for payment.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no amount overdue
for more than 90 days as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of guarantees
given to its wholly owned subsidiary.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
deposits in accordance with directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and hence the
provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the
rules framed there under are not applicable to the company. Thus, paragraph 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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(vi)

(vi)

(viir)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the maintenance of cost records
under 148 (1) of the Act read with Companies (Cost records and Audit) Rules, 2014 are not
applicable as the turnover of the company is below specified limits. Thus, paragraph (vi) of the
Order 1s not applicable to the Company.

(@)

(b)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit
procedures carried out by us, undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, Goods and Service tax, duty
of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, to the extent applicable, have generally
been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a slight
delay in a few cases during the year. There are no arrears of undisputed statutory dues of a
material nature outstanding as at the last day of the financial year for a period of more
than six months from the due date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unpaid disputed
income tax or sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or Goods and Service tax or duty of
customs or duty of excise or value added tax or cess as on 31* March 2018.

According to information and explanations given to us and as per our verification of the
records of the company, the company has not defaulted in repayment of its dues to the
financial mstitutions and banks, except for a few minor delays as given below:

Bank Name Nature of dues Amount of Default
default (Rs) | (In Days)
HDFC Bank Limited | Principal 3,50,00,000 1 day
HDFC Bank Limited | Principal & Interest 3,51,03,562 4 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 1,07,41,932 4 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 1,20,44,022 3 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 3,15,509 2 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 4,49,244 3 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 7,830 6 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 1,18,52,688 8 days
Federal Bank Limited | Interest 1,13,51,238 1 day

The Company has not issued debentures or obtained loans from Government.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
and hence clause (ix) is not applicable to the company to that extent. According to the
information and explanations provided to us, the Company has utilized the monies raised by
way of term loans for the purpose for which the loan was obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed ot reported
during the course of our audit.
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(x1)

(xi)

(xiii)

(xv)

(xv)

According to the information and explanations provided to us, the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Companies Act 2013 is not applicable to the company for the
yeat.

The company is not a Nidhi company and hence paragraph (xi) of the “order” is not
applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations provided to us and as per our verification, all
the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act 2013 since in the view of the company these transactions have been
undertaken on arm’s length basis in the ordinary course of business and all the details as
required to be disclosed by the applicable accounting standard (Ind AS 24 — Related Parties
Disclosures) have been disclosed in the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has complied with provisions of section 42 of the Act read with
Rule 14 to Companites (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules 2014, in respect of
private placement of cumulative non convertible redeemable preference shares issued during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and as per our test verification,
the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions as contemplated in Section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 with directors or persons connected with directors. Thus,
paragraph (xv) of the “order” is not applicable to it.

As per the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be
registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Thus, paragraph (xvi)
of the “order” is not applicable to it.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

Cospaven - WP

K P SRINIVAS

Place of signature: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 21" May, 2018 M.No.208520
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) '

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial teporting of Zuati Infraworld India
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial repotting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed 11sk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of financial statements, whether due to fraud ot error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repotting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that;

(1.) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2.) provide reasonable assurance that transactions ate recorded as necessaty to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3.) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, ot disposition of the company's assets that could have a matetial effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
mternal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
mnternal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opmion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company including basis of allocating expenses to various projects
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045328

{; ﬁM\k\m» R

K P SRINIVAS

Place of signature: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 21" May, 2018 M.No.208520
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

(Amount in Rupees, unless othenwise stated)

BALANCE SHEET

Note As at
March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

ASSETS
Non-current asscts
(a) Property, plant and cquipment
(b, Capital work in progress
(¢.) Other intangible assers
{d.) Financial assers:

(1) Investments

(1) Loans

(1) Orher financal assets
(¢.) Deterred tax asset {(net)
(£ Income tax assers (net)

() Other non current assces

Current assets
(a.) Inventorics
(b.) FFinancial assets
(i) Trade recervables
(i) Cash & cash cquivalent
(i.) Loans
(iv.y Other financial assets

(c.y Other current assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

(a.) Liquity share capital

(b.) Other equity

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a.) linancial liabilitics
(i.) Borrowings
(ii.) T'rade payables
(iit,) Other financial labilitics
(b.) Provisions

(c) Deferred tax liability (net)

Current liabilities
(a.) Financial liabtlitics

(i) Borrowings

(ii.) Trade payables

(#it.) Orther financial liabilities
(b.) Other current liabilities

(c.) Provisions

3.1 1,54.88,715 | 44.16,502
3.2 - 13,17,539
33 1,79.734 576,114
441 1.23.26,79,878 68,86,52,842
5.1 - 374,154
6.1 29,090,246 27.17,235
17 ; 36,95,882
1.15,50,458 1,54,67.050
7. 8,84,12,183 9.47,86,304
1,35,12,29,214 $2,20,03,712
8 1,74,08,05,271 1,53,02,49.177
9 18,68,36,159 19,54,01,900
10 1.54,87,920 1,60,38,881
5.2 7.79.88,075 142,715
6.2 10,40,55,709 29 68,68.278
7.2 29,52,45,721 29,82,20,958
2,45,04,18,855 2,33,69,21,909
3,80,16,48,069 3,15,89,25,621
46,55,00,000 46,55,00,000
12 1,05,85,59,494 79,53,40,464
1,52,40,59,494 1,26,08,40,464
131 1,24,70,05,711 1,16,10,17,533
14.1 1.99,56,647 397.13,676
15.1 26,01,071 -
16.1 39,48,032 42,92214
17 2,13,56,596 -
1,29,48,68,957 1,20,50,23,423
13.2 35,00,00,000 .
14.2 11,46,52,590 15,25,55,420
15.2 31,33,07,086 31,22,28,293
18 20,40,58,432 22.78,19,000
16.2 701,510 4,558,013
98,27,19,618 69,30,61,734
3,80,16,48,069 3,15,89,25,621

The accompanying notes forms an inregral part of the standalone financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

/ari Infraworld India Limited

Lo
. A
N SURESH KRISHNAN

SUNIL SETHY
Dirccror
IN: 00244104

Dircctor

DIN: 0()()219()&
ANSHUL A. BANSAL WDA
Chietf Financial Officer Company Sceretary
Place: Gurgaon

Date: 21 May, 201 3

This ix the balaice sheet referved 1o &n onr report of the even datz atiached.
For VARMA & VARMA,

Chartered Accountants

RN 0045328

g A V- b Y :
K P SRINIVAS
TParmer
AL No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED (\mount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT Notes For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
REVENUE:
Revenue from operations 19 6,63,28,337 18,76,54,786
Other income 20 6,32,83,473 5,31,26,637
Total Revenues 12,96,11,810 24,07,81,423
EXPENSES:
Purchasce of stock, sub contract charges and other cost of project 21 25,58,43,092 36,13,63,187
Changes in stock of finished goods, stock-in-trade and Work-in-progress 22 (21,05,50,095) (24,84,05,050)
Fmployee benefit expenses 23 1,43,23,379 1,78,84,839
Other expenses 24 3,38,23,420 3,85,00,6063
Total expenses 9,34,34,396 16,93,49,033
Profit Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortisation 3,61,77,414 7,14,32,390
Finance cosrs 25 2,42.,94,269 4,40,92,523
Depredation and amortization expense 26 24,17.886 33,02,264
Profit before tax expenses 94,65,259 2,40,37,603
Tax expenses: 27
Current tax expense 6,00,000 28,87,707
Tax Expenses of carlier years 4,74,091 -
Deferred tax 1,02,64,805 29,84,134
Tax Expenses for the year (net) 1,13,38,896 58,71,840
Profit/ (Loss) for the year before other comprehensive income (18,73,637) 1,81,65,763

Other comprehensive income / (Loss)
Ttemy that will not b reclassified to profit or loss

Remeasurement of gratuity obligations 6,65,093 7,29,403

Deferred rax on above items (1,72,924) (2,41,163)
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 4,92,169 4,88,240

Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (13,81,468) 1,86,54,003

Earning/(Loss) per share (in Rs.) 30

Basic & Diluted (0.04) 0.39
Weighted average number of shares used in computing Earnings per share 4,65,50,000 4,65,50,000

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements

This is the Profit & Loss Staterent referved 1o in onr report of 1he even dute altached,

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of For VARMA & VARMA
Zuari Infraworld India Limited Chartered Accountants
RN 0045325
}Z‘Wl forsh o~ < Casrivan- WP
N SURESH KRISHNAN SUNIL SETHY K P SRINIVAS
Dircctor Dirccror Partmer
DIN: 00021965 IDIN: 00244104 M. No. 208520
}@ A
//Yb / Place: Gurgaon
ANSHUL A. BANSAL C G RAMEGOWDA Date: 21 May, 2018
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDJTA LIMITED

(Amount in Rupaes, except otienwise stated)

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the vear ended
31 March 2017

For the year ended
31 March 2018

\. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Net Profit before taxation
dptstzent jor
Diepreciation & Amortiisation
Loss on sale of angible asscis (ned)
Interest Income
Balances written-off
Short Term Capital Gain - Muual Fund
Dividend from Mutual funds
Gain on fair value adjustments to financial assets through profitor toss
Ieair value adjustment to inter corporate deposits, nct.
Foair value adjustment to sceurity deposits, net.
Provision towards service refund reccivable
Adjustment on amortisation of financial assets, net
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans through OCT
Fair value adjustment to preference shares issued

Operating Profit/(Loss) before working Capital Changes

(Increase) / Decrease n financial and Other assets
(Increase) / Decrease in Inventorics
(Deerease)/Increase in Trade Payables
(Decrease)/Increase m Provisions
(Decrease)/Increase in Financial and other habilines
Net cash generated from operations
Dircet Taxes Paid (et of refund incl. Interest on refund)
Net cash generated from operating activities

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Additions to tangible/intangible asscts
Praceeds from sale of tangible/intangible asscts
Tnvestments in Murual Funds
Proceeds from sale of Investments in Mutual Funds
Loans to subsidiarics, net of sepayments
Changes in other bank balances
Tnterest received
Net cash from Investing activities

(.. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from lssue of Prefesence shares at a premium of Rs.90 per share.
Proceeds from Short erm Borrowings (net)
Proceeds from Long term Borrowings (net)
Net cash used in financing activities
Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year

Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7 as amended:

94,65,259 2,40,37,603

34,26.00061 41,01 458
255871 10,850

(21,24,249) (31,76,083)
1,111,381 -

(4,44,568) {11,25,007)
(4,63,830) -
(4,85,63,201) (4,72,23,241)
(77,45,554) -

(94,445) -
10,34,805 -
1,073 14,920
6,065,093 7,29,403
95,36,759 68,79,601
(3,49,39,551) (1,57,40,556)
85,065,741 (6,78,67,500)
20,95,63,921 2,51,18,353
(21,05,56,094) (24,84,05,6506)
(5,760,59,808) 94,54,867
(1,00,685) 2,71,918
(3,94,14,136) (4,87,00,2-44)
(12,45,40,673) (34,59,28,818)
32,95,945 (30,17,024)
(12,12,44,728) (34,89,46,742)
(31,79,542) (21,90,484)
1,39,406 19,600
(72,95,96,097) (13,00,06,780)
23,50,40,665 13,11,31,847
(7,82,61,000 -
- 19,34,78,502
15,50,425 31,76,083
(57,43,06,232) 19,56,08,827
29,50,00,000) .
35,00,00,000 .
8,00,00,000 15,86,83,164
72,50,00,000 15,86,83,164
2,94,49,040 53,45,249
1,60,38,880 1,06,93,631
4,54,87,920 1,60,38,880

Particulars As at 01.04.2017

Cash Flow

Transferred w0 As at 31.03.2017
Securities Premium

Account

Non-Cash Adj.
Duir Value
Tdjustnients)

Preference Shares (Debt portion) 5,61,54,238

29 50,00,000

(26,55,00,000) (31,78 489) 814,175,749

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalone {inancial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuari Infraworld Tndia Limited

K \.wj\ Lo e

N SURESH KRISHNAN
Director
DIN: 00021965

SUNIL SETHY
Director
DIN: 00244104

AMEGQWDA

Company Sceretary

ANSHUL A. BANSAL
Chief Financral Officer
Place: Gurgaon

Date: 21 May, 2018

Thiv i the Caih Viow staterment seferved (o & onr repard of the eren dute atfachd
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

FRN (1043328

o
Curaas &8
K P SRINIVAS

Partner
M. No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

{ Amount in Rupees, unless othenwvise stared)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

A. Equity share capital

As at 31 March, 2017 46,55,00,000
As at 31 March, 2018 46,55,00,000
B. Other equity
Particulars Securities Equity Component Retained Total
premium of convertible carnings
account preference shares
Balance as at 1 April, 2016 76,50,00,000 42495328 (3,08,08,867) 77,66,86,461
Profit for the vear - - 1,81,65,763 1,81.65,763
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 4,88,240 4,88,240
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 76,50,00,000 4,24,95,328 (1,21,54,864) 79,53,40,464
Profit for the vear - - (18,73,637) (18,73,637)
Deferred tax adi. on the interest on preference shares - (1,46,14,750} (1,46,14,750)
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 4,92.169 4,92,169
Security premium on the issue of preference shares 26,55,00,000 - - 26,55,00,000
Pquity component of preference shares - 1,37,15,248 B 1,37,15,248
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 1,03,05,00,000 4,15,95,827 (1,35,36,332) 1,05,85,59,494

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the standalonce financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Yuari Infraworld India Limited

A

N SURESH KRISHNAN, SUNIL%ETHY

Dircctor Director
DIN: 00(]21% // o IDTN: 00244104 @

ANSHUL A. BANSAL AMEGOWDA
Chicf Financial Officer Company Sccretary
Place: Gurgaon

Date: 21 May, 2018

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in onr report of even dafe.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
I'RN 0045328

e .
SRR Ty L
K P SRINIVAS
Partner

M. No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 21 May, 2018
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

1. Corporate information:
uari Infravorld Tndia Limited (Cthe Company” or “7Z111.7) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Zuari Global Tamited "G and s
) 3 ) }
pre-dominanty into the business of developing residential com commereial property intended for sale. The company is a public
limited company domiciled in India and 1 tncorporated under the provisions of the Companics Act applicable in India.
The financial seatements were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of dircctors ar the meeting held on
b

21st May, 2018.

2. Significant accounting policies:

(a.) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the acerual basis except for certain financial
instruments which are measured at fair values and in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section
133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Tndian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amendments thereto and rthe
Guidance Note on Real Estate Transactions (For entitics to whom Ind AS is applicable) issued by The Instirate of Chartered

Accountants of India (JCAT).

Iffective from April 1, 2016, the Company has adopted the Tnd AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with
Ind AS 101 First ome adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the transition dare. For the financial years
upto and including the vear ended 31 March 2016, the Company has prepared its financial statements in accordance with the
accounting standards notificd under the seerion 133 of the Companies Acr 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companics

(Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAD).

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

(b.) Use of Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make estimates, judgments and
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policics and the reported amounts of
asscts and liabilitics, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the year. The application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates involving
complex and subjective judgments and the use of assamptions i these financial statements have been disclosed in the ensuing
Notes. Accounting estimates could change from year to year. Also actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in
estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the year in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in

the notes to the financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions uscd by management arc as below:

i. Uscful lives of Tnvestment Property, Property Plant and Equipment and Intangible Asscts and assessment of impairments.

i, lair value measurements of various financial assets and liabilitics and the resultant fair values.

iii. Computation of percentage completion for projects in progress, project cost, revenue and saleable arca estimates. The
measurement of project costs and revenue are affected by various uncerrainties that depend on outcome of future events. The
estimates often need revision as events acerue and uncertaintics are resolved. Therefore the project cost and revenue may increase or

decrease from onc I'CP()l'tiﬂg year to another.

(c)) (i) Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation
The Property, plant and equipment of the Company are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directy attributable cost of bringing the asset to its current

working condition for the intended use. Any rrade discounts or rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase cost.

B Recognition:

bt The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:

(i) it is probable that furure economic benefits associated with the irem will flow to the Company; and
(i) the cost of the stem can be measured reliably.

‘ts arc as follows

Details about uscful life of cach category of as:

Name of Assets Useful Lives
Office Equipment 5 years
Plant & Machinery 8 years
e Jfurniture & lixrures 10 years
Computer and servers 3 and 6 years
Moror Vehicles 10 years
. Leaschold Improvements Oner the primary lease period ending on 31 03,2025

Temporary structure 1 vears




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31t MARCH, 2018

Depreciation is provided under the Srraight Tine Merhod after retaining estimared residual value not exceeding 5% ot the cost,
except for Lease hold Tmprovements. Depreciation on assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and
development cost.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of properry, plant and cquipment are reviewed ar cach financil year

end and adjusted prospectively, if considered appropriate.
Upon adoption of Tnd AS, the Company has cleered to measure all its property, plant and cquipment at the Previous GAAD carrying

amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.c., Ist April, 201 5.

(if) Intangible Assets and Amortisation:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible asscts are assessed as
cither finite or indefinite. Intangible asscts with finite lives are amortized under the Straight Line Method over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of cach reporting period.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
cxpenditure forms part of carrying value of another assct. Intangible asscts with indefinite useful hves are not amortised, but are
tested for impairment annually, cither individually or ar the cash-generating unit Jevel. The assessment of ndcfinite Tife 1s reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful ife from indefinite to fintte

is made on a prospective basis.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company had clected to measure all its intangible assets at the Previous GAAD carrying

amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS ie., Tst April, 2015.

(d.) Leases (other than land leases)
Operating Leases as a lessee:
Lease rentals are recognized as expense or income on a straight line basis with reference to lease terms and other considerations
except where:-

() Another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefir derived from the asset taken or given on lease;

(if) The payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expeeted general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s

expeeted inflationary cost increases

(e.) Impairment of assets

The Company assesses, ar cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset mav be tmpaired. Tf any indication exists

)
or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. Recoverable

amount is derermined for an individual assct, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those

from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and 1s written down to its recoverable amount. Tn assessing value i usc, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. Tf

no such transactions can be identificd, an appropriate valuation modcl is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for propertics previously
revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCL For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCH up to the amount of
any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at cach reporting date to determine whether there s an indication that
previously recognised impairment Josses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indicadon exists, the Company cstimates the
asset’s or CGUs recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment Joss was recognised. The reversal is fimited
so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have

been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recopnised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised

in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried ar a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation

mncreasc.

(f.) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancllary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Borrowing costs that are direedy attributable to the construction of devdlopment property are capitalized as part of the cost tll such

time the property is ready for its intended sale. Al other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they oceur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period in which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an asset for its intended use or

sale. Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capitalisation. [owever, the Company does not

normally suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and administrative work. The

Company also does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporaryzdelay considering the nature of industry 15 2

necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for its intended use or salg




i ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(g)

(h.)

()

G

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company’s financial statements are prepared and presented in Tndian Rupees, which is also i°s functional currency.

(i) Tnitial Recognition: Forcign currency transactions, if any, arc recorded at exchange rate prevailing on the date of ransaction/
realisation.

(it} Conversion / Reinstatement: Foreign currency monetary irems are rranslated using the spot exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting dare. Non-monetary items that are measured in rerms of historical cost denominated in a forcign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the inttal ransaction. Non-monctary irems measured ar fair value denominated in a foreign
currency are, translated using the exchange rates that existed when the fair value was determined.

@1i1) Iixchange Ditferences: Ixchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting Company’s monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the vear, or reported in previous financial statements,
are recognized as income or as expenses in the vear in which they arise

The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair valuc is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c., ransladon differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in

other comprehensive income (OCT) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCT or profit and loss, respectively).

Inventories
The cost of inventorics shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land | costs of conversion and other costs including

borrowing costs incurred in bringing the inventories to thedr present location and condition,

JInventories (comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Progress) are stated at lower of cost and net realizable

value. Cost includes expenses, net of faxes recovenable, specifically attributable to construction and development of property

intended for sale. The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activiries.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

Contingent Liabilities

\ contingent lability is a possible obligation that arises from past cvents whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyvond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized
beeause it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to setde the obligation. A contingent lability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does

not recognize a contingent lability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required ro sertde the obligation and a rcliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement s recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement s virrually certain, The expense relating to a provision is presented i the statement of profit and loss net
of any reimbursement.

1f the effect of the time value of moncy is material, provisions arc discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognised as a finance cost.

Revenue Recognition

{i.) Revenue is recognized i relation fo the residential / Commercial units sold, to the extent 1t 18 probable that the cconomic
benefits will flow to the Company demonstrated either by way of an Agreement for Sale (AFS) and when the buyer's investment is
adequate enough to demonstrate a commitment to pay. In accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Bstate
Transactions (for catitics to whom Ind AS is applicable) issucd by the Tnstitute of Chartered A ccountants of India {the "TCAT") that
there is a rebuttable presumption that outcome of real estate project can be estimated reliably and revenue from sale of residential

properties is recognised on the "percentage of completion method" only i the following conditions are satisfied :

- all critical approvals necessary for the commencement of the project have been obrincd.
- the expenditure incurred on construction and development costs (excluding Jand cost) is not less than 25 %% of the ol esrimated
construction and development costs;

rs; and

- atleast 25 Y% of the saleable project area is sceusred by contracts/agreements with buy
- at least 10 % of the contracts/agreements value are realized at the reporting date m respect of such contracts/agreements

(ii.) Tncome in respeet of service contracts which are in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognized proportionately over
the specified period.

(i) Tocome in reapect of service contracts which are based on the corresponding project costs/profits are recognized when actual

construction work commences and there are no significant uncertainties as 1o the underdying projects and the corresponding costs

are incurred or profits are carned by the customers.



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

{iv.) Tnterest income is recognised on a time proportion basis raking into account the amount outstanding and the rates applicable.

v Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is cstablished by the seporting date.

4

(k.) Taxes on income
Current income tax
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid o the tax

authoritics using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Aet, 1901,

Carrent income fax assets and labilitics are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the raxation
authoritics. The rax rates and fax laws used to compute the amount are those that are cnacted or substantively cnacted, at the
reporting date.

Current income tax relating ro items recognised outside profic or loss s recognised outside profic or loss (cither i other
comprehensive income or in cquity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations

in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences hetween the tax bases of assets and labilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax asscts and liabilitics are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset i realised or the
tiability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary ditferences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused

tax losses. Deferred tax asscts are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profir will be available against which the

deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred fax sclating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement is recognised outside profit or loss (cither in other

comprchensive income or in equity).

(1) Retirement and other Employee Benefits

Provident Fund

Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged to the Profit
atement of the year when the contributions to the respective funds are duc. There are no other obligations other than the

and 1.oss st

contribution payable under the scheme.

Gratuity
Gratuity Hability under the Payment of Gratity Act 1972, are defined benefit obligatons and are provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation on projected unit eredit method, made at the end of cach financial year, The gratuity Hability s not funded.

Compensated Absences
Short term compensated absences are provided for based on estimates by the Management considening the entitlements outstanding
as at the reporting date. Long term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation made at the end of cach

financial year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest
on the net defined benefit liabiline and the return on plan assets {exduding amounts included in net interest on the net defined
benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings through
OCT in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not rechssified to profit or loss statement in subsequent periods.

Sset.

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate o the net defined benefit lability or

(m.) Current and Non-current classification
Al Assers and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and orher
criteria set out in Schedule 1T of the Gompanies Act, 2013, As the Company is engaged in devdloping a residential cum commercial
project, the normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash cquivalents. The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as one year for the purpose of Current - Noncurrent

classification of asscts and labilitics, which is considered appropriate.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(n.) Financial Instruments
\ financial instrument is any contract that gives sise to a fnancial asser of ane eatity and a financial liabiliny or equity mstrument ol

another entity.

(1.) Financial assets
Initial recognition
All financial assets are recognised inirally at faiv value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded ar fair value through proficor

loss, transaction costs that are ateributable to the acquisition of the financial assct.

Subsequent measurement

Jor purposes of subscquent measurement, financial asscts are classificd in three caregories:
- Dbt instruments at amortised cost
- Debt/ Fquity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive mneome

- Debt / FEquity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrament is measured at the amortised costif both the following conditions are met:

(a)) The asset is held within a business maodel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows

(b.) Contractual terms of the asset give risc on specified dates 1o cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (sPPY)

on the principal amount outstanding.

Afeer initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest rate (F1R)
method. Amortised cast is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that arc an
integral part of the FIRC The BIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The Tosses arising from

impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Debt at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the INTOCTif both of the following criteria are met:

(a.) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contracrual cash flows and sclling the financial assets, and

(b.y The asset’s contractual cash lows represent SPPLL
1

Dbt instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measured initially as well as ar cach reporting daie ar fair value, Fair

value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the company secognizes mnterest ncome,

impairment losses & reversals and forcign exchange gain or loss in the P&J.. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCL s reclassified from the cquity to P&l Interest carned whilst holding IFVTOCI debt instrument is

reported as interest income using the IR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

VIR s a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCH, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may clect to designate a debt nstrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or IFVEOCT eriteria, as at
FVITL. However, such clection s allowed only it doing so seduces or diminates a measurement of recognition inconsistency

(referred to as ‘accounting mismarch’). The company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVIPLL.

Dbt instruments incladed within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and Loss
statement.
Equity Instruments at FVIP/FVTOCI

Al cquity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. For all other equity mstruments, the Company may make

an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subscquent changes m the fair value. The Companies makes such
dection on an instrument-by-instrament basis. The dassification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable. Tnvestments in

cquity share of subsidiary and associates are measured at cost of acquisition pursuant to Ind AS 109,

If the Company decides to dassify an cquity instrument as at IVTOCT, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding

dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no transfer of the amounts from OCT to Profir and Loss | on sale of investment.

[Towever, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity.

Fquiry instruments included within the FVIPL catcgory are measurcd at fair value wighvall ehanges recognized in the Profic and Loss
juity &0 U i}

statement.
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Derecognition
A fmancial asset (or, where applicable, 2 part of a financial asser or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (e removed from the balanee sheet) when:

{a.) The rights to reccive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b The company has rransferred its rights to reecive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash

flows in full withoutr material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through arrangement; and cither (a) the company has tansferred

substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither rransferred nor retained substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, 1t
J kel tal & >
cvaluares if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transterred nor retained

substantially all of the visks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues o recogmise the

transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. Tn that case, the company also recogmses an associated
liability. The transferred asser and the associated Tability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying

amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Tnd AS 109, the company applics expected credit Joss (FCLY) model for measurement and recognition of
> pany apj I ) &

impairment Joss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial asscrs that are debr instraments, and are measured at amortised cost ¢, loans, debt sccurities, deposits, trade
receivables and bank balances in current account.
(b.) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at 'V'IPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on ‘I'rade receivables that do not contain a

significant financing component. The application of simplified approach docs not require the Company to track changes in credit

risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 15CLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

As registration of property and subscquent revenue recognidon 1s done only when company receives the full amount from the

customer, The company docs not expect any for credit loss on trade reccivables in sespeet of sale of propertics, which is constdered

appropriate by the Management .

For recognition of impairment Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been

a significant increase in the eredit risk since initial recognition. Tf credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to

provide for impairment loss. Towever, if credit visk has increased significantly, lifetime ECTL s used. 1, i a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the

Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECLL.

Lifetime 1XCL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The 12-month 15CL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date.

13CT is the difference benween all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to reccive (1.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original FIR. When cstimating the cash
flows, the Company considers:

Al contractual terms of the financial insrrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of

the financial instrument. TTowever, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then

the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

(I1.) Financial liabilities

(i) Initial recognition and measurement

Vinancial liabilitics are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics ar fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,

payables, as appropriate. Al financial labshides arc recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and

payables, net of dircetly ateriburable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial guarantee contracts
B / ? o ;'\ tal

and derivative financial instruments.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(o)

®)

(i1) Subsequent meagurement

The measurement of financial liabiliies depends on thetr classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Tinancial liabilities ar fair value through profic or loss include financial liabilifies held for trading and financial habilities designared
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. inancial Habilities arc classified as held for mading, if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruraents entered into by the
company rthat are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge roarionships as defined by Ind s 109, Separared embedded

derivatives are also classificd as held for mading unless they are designated as effective hedging insouments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for wading are recognised in the profit or loss,

linancial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the ininal date of
recognition, and only if the criteria n Ind A5 109 are satisficd. Tor liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gaing/ loss are not subscquently transferred to P&LL.
owever, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All other changes in fair value of such lability are
yecognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial Tability as at fair value through profit

and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subscquentdy measured at amortised cost using the FIR method.

Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the labilities are derccognised as well as through the IR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the BIR. The TR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to

borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment fo be made to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when duc in accordance with the terms of a debr instrument.
Pinancial guarantee contracts are recognised inirially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subscquently, the liabiliey is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance

determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial Hability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability arc
substantially modificd, such an cxchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss statement.

Eamings per Share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to the cquity sharcholders (after
deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the year. For the purpose of
caleulating diluted carnings per share, net profit or loss for the year attributable to cquity sharcholders and the weighted average

number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive potential cquity shares.

Segment Reporting Policies

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided o the chicf operating decision maker.
Chicf operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Company according to the nature of business which predominantly
comprises of development of real estate projects both residential and commercial.

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting

financial statements of the Company as a whole.
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NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2048

(q.) Recent Accounting pronouncements
i. New Accounting standards adopted by the Company:

Tn March 2017, the Ministry of Corporare Affairs ssued the Companics (Indian Accounting standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2017,

Seatement of cash flows”, These amendments are in accordance with the recent amendments

notfving amendments to Ind AS 7
made by International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) to 1AS 7, Statement of cash flows”. The amendments are applicable to

the Company from April 01, 2017,

Amendment to Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows:

The amendments require entitics to provide disclosures abour changes i their liabilities arising from financing actvities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as forcign exchange gains or losses). On initial application of the

amendment, enities are not required to provide comparative information for preceding penods.

ii. New accounting standards not yet adopted:
Tn 28 March, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules,

2018 notified a new standard, amendments to existing standards and interpretations which are cffeetive for financial year beginning

after April 1, 2018, and have not been applied in preparing these standalone financial statements. New standards, amendments to

standards and interpretations that could have a potential impact on the financial statements of the Company are:

Notification of new revenue recognition standard Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers:

Tod AS 115 supersedes all existing revenue recognition requirements in Ind AS 11 Constraction Contracts, Ind AS 18 Revenue and
rclated interpretations. Aecording to the new standard, revenuc is recognized to reflect the transfer of promised goods or KCIVICES 1O
a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entiry expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
seivices. Ind AS 115 establishes a five step model that will apply to revenue camned from a contract with a customer (with limited

exceptions), regardless of the type of revenue tansaction or the industry. xtensive disclosures will be required, indluding
disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligation; changes in contract asser and hability account balances

benween periods and key judgments and estimates

The standard allows for two methods of transition: the retrospective approach, under which the effect of adoption of this standard s
presented retrospectively to cach prior reporting period in accordance with Tnd AS 8, Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting
Istimates and Lrrors (subject o few expedients) or the camulative approach, where the cumulative effect of applying the standard
retrospectively is recognized at the date of ininal application. The standard is cffective for financial year beginning on or after April

1, 2018. The Management is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard on the Company’s financial statements.

Amendment to Ind AS 21- The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates:

Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration to Ind AS 21 requires to record a foreign currency

transaction, on initial recognition in its functional currency, by applying to the forcign currency amount the spot exchange rate
between the functional currency and the forcign currency (the exchange rate) at the date of the transaction. Tt farther states that the

date of the transaction is the date on which the transaction first qualifics for recognition in accordance with Ind AS Standards.

Accordingly, this appendix clarifics the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on initial
recognition of the related asser, expense or income when an entity has reecived or paid advance consideration in a forcign currency.

The effect on adoption of this change on the financial statements is expected o be insignificant.

. blank
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.

(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

4. Investments As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

4.1. Non-current

(i) Investments in equity shares (Unquoted)
Investments carried at Cost (fully paid)

In Subsidiary Companies
uari Infra Middle Fast Limired - wholly owned subsidiary 1,66,400 1,66,400
(10,000 (2017:10,000) Tquiry Shares of A 1 cachj

In Associates (Unquoted)

(a) Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private imited 18,94,00,000 18,94,00,000
[10,00,000 (2()17:1(],00,00()) Liguity Shares of Rs 10 cach, issucd at a premium of Rs 179.40/-]
(b)) Darshan Nirman Private Tamited 25,000 25,000
12,500 (2017:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach]
(c)) Pranati Niketan Private Limited 25,000 25,000
12,500 (2017:2,500) I quity Shares of Rs 10 cachf
18,96,16,400 18,96,16,400
(ii) Investments in preference shares (Unquoted)
Investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692
[5,00,000 shares of Rs 100 cach, fully paid, Date of Marurity 30 November, 2023
(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative oprionally convertible preference shares)
6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692
(iif) Investments in mutual funds (Ungquoted)
Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss:
(a) 1C1C Prudential Fixed Mararity plan Series (77-1 473 Days Plan () 6,37,92,500 5,94,33,000
15,000,000 units ar Rs 10 per unit, Date of Marurity 25 May, 2019
() 1CTICT Prudential Tiixed Marurity plan Serics (78-1130 Days Plan 1) 11,75,45,000 10,96,28,000
[10,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Manuwity 25 April, 2019]
(e) 1CICT Prudential Fixed Matority plan Series {78-11 56 Days Plan T) 5,84,05,500 5,45,13,000
[5,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 29 May, 2019]
(d) SBI Debt Fund Series B-36 (1131 Days) 9,93,24,200 9,29 00,750
[8,500,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 06 May, 2019
{¢.) SBT Dbt Fund Series C-1 (1100 Days) 15,72,49,500 -
[8,500,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 26 Junc, 2020}
(f) SBI Debt Hund Series B-17(1100 Days)” 12,54,93,000 11,71,47,000
[10,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Marurity 22 May, 2018]
() SBI Short Term Debt fund * 35,58,39,086 -
[1,73,57,242.175 units at Rs 10 per unit|
97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750
1,23,26,79,878 68,86,52,842

* The Management intends to reinvest the proceeds on marurity accordingly these investments are classified as Non-current.

4.2 Summary of Investment and their valuation (Also, refer Note 36)

Investment Class Method of Valuation As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017
Unquoted cquity shares Cost 18,96,16,400 18,96,16,400
Unquoted preference shares Discounted cash flows method® 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692
Murual funds Market observable mputs 97.76,48,786 43,36,21,750
1,23,26,79,878 68,86,52,842

* Based on the valuation reports issued by the independent valner and relied upon by the andilars.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31

{(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

4.3, Tnvestments in munual funds are held under Hen with bank for stand by leter of eredit (SBLC) factlity from State Bank of Tndi in favour
of a Bank i UAL on the basis of which term loan facilivies will be availed by Zuari Infraworld Middle Taste TLamited, Dubat (WOS;). The
sanctioned limit of the facility s Re.176.77crores ( AT 105 million) (2017: Rs.176.77crores ) for a tenor of 4 years and caim period of 2
monrhs (Date of sanction : 23 March, 2015). A the investments are carried as non-current as they are expected 1o either renewed [/ re-

nvested on their marariry,

4.4.Tnvestment of funds in mutual funds will not mect the contracrual cash flow test (i.e. SPPT test) as the contracrual cash flows (e, dividends
or redemprion amount represented by the NAVY will not just be solely interest and principal. ‘Therefore, the same has been cassified as air

Valuc through proficand loss (IFV1T1)

4.5, Investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:

Company has made investment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Privace
Timited. These investments in shares does not satisfy contractual cash flow test as they are optionally convertible into cequity shares and their
dividends are linked to profits carned. Accordingly, the Company has classified these investments in shares as Tair value through profic and
loss (IFVIPL). For this purpose fair valuation was carried by an independent valuer and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

4.6. Investments in Mutual Funds brought and sold during the year are given helow:

Descriptions For the year ended March 31, 2018 For the year ended March 31, 2017
Purchase Cost  Sale Proceeds Gain/Income| Purchase Cost Sale Proceeds Gain/Income
1CTCT Prudential Fixed Maturity Plan - - - 12,20,24,160 12,30,31,010 10,06,850
SBI Debt 'unds . - - 79,82,620 81,00,837 1,18,217
[CICT Prudential (1.iq.) Mutual Fund 3,95,00,000 3,96,36,902 1,36,902 - -
IDFC-Money Mgr. Fd. -Treasury Plan 50,00,000 50,18,225 18,225 - - -
1.&T Liquid FFund 25,00,000 25,22,656 22,656 - - -
1.&T Ultra Short Term fund 5,71,32,261 5,73,99,047 2,66,786 - - -
SBI Mg, Insta Cash J'und (Daily Div) 13,00,00,000 13,04,63,835 4,63,835 - - B
23,41,32,261 23,50,40,665 9,08,404 13,00,06,780 13,11,31,847 11,25,067

4.7. No impairment in the value of the earrying value of the investment s considered necessary as the diminution i the net asser is not of a

permanent nature considering the future business prospects of the Projects, which 1s considered appropriate by the Management.

5. Loans As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

5.1. Non - Current

Loan to employcees (amortised cost) - 3,74,154
- 3,74,154

5.2. Current

Loan to Zuari Infraworld Middle BFast Limited, Dubat (carried at amortised cost) 7,78,00,142 -

Advances to Employees (carried at cost) 1,87,933 1,42,715
7,79,88,075 1,42,715
7,79,88,075 5,16,869

5.3. Unsccured Loan 1o Zuari Infraworld Middle Fast Limited, Dubai, Wholly owned subsidiary is to meer working capital Requirments of

that company and carry a interest rate of 14% per annum. These Joans along with interest are repayable in equivalent Indian Currency within
18 months from the date of disbursement. for detailed schedule of repayment refer below:

Repayment Schedule:

Particulars Sanction Loan Repaid during  Fair value Closing Maturity Date Amount

Date Disbursed the year Adjustment balance disbursed (AED)
(At cost) (Fair Value)

Loan 1 03-05-2017 3,00,17,538 3,00,17,538 - - 04-11-2018 16,99,717

Loan 2 09-05-2017  3.20,17,837 33,04,087 (171,342) 28542408 08-11-2018 18,08,032

Loan 3 10-07-2017 35,57,570 - (20,032) 35,36,638 (19-01-2019 2,00,000

Toan 4 13-08-2017  4,59,89,769 . (2,68,671)  457.21005 12-02-2019 26,00,000

Total 11,15,82,714 3,33,21,624 (4,60,948)  7,78,00,142 63,08,649




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°

{Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

6. Other financial assets Asg at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

6.1. Non-current

Sceurity depostes (carried at amortised cost) 26,69,046 24,77,035
Sceurity deposits (carried at costy™ 2,40,200 2,40,200
29,09,246 27,17,235
6.2. Current
Securtty deposits - Current (Carried ar cost)? 24,71 4106 12,32,971
Interest acerued and duce - Others (refer note 6.3, below) 33,71,513 18,87,939
Deterred Tnterest on loan to subsidiary fair value adjustment 82,06,502 -
Accerued Service Income {refer note 6.4, below) 14,59,230 -
Expenses Recoverable (refer note 6.5. below) 7.04,74,974 4.81,47.786
Unbilled Revenue 1,80,72,074 24.,55,99 582
10,40,55,709 29,68,68,278

* Fully recoverable and heice w0 provision is considered necessary.

6.3 Interest acerued on maobilisation advances paid to one of the sub-contractors is expected to be recovered m full and hence provision 1s not

considered at this stage, which is considered appropriate by the Management.

6.4 Represents service income accrued and not billed to related parties;

Zauart Infra Middle Last Limited, UAL - Commission towards financial guarantee 13,2:4,230 -
Zuari Global Limited, Tndia - DMC 1,35,000 -
14,59,230 -

6.5 Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 1,57,32,604 80,01,275
Zuart Infra Middle last Limited, UALL 5,36,39,055 3,84,10,977
6,94,93,583 4,70,85,575

7. Other Assets As at As at

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

7.1. Non-Current

Advances recoverable in cash or kind (refer note 7.3 & 7.4 below) 8,50,16,721 9,17,74,007
Karnataka VAT - refund receivable 32,01,319 26,25,072
Service tax - refund recetvable 10,34,805 -
Less: Provision towards service tax refund (10,34,805) -
Prepaid lease (Security deposit paid) 1,904,143 3,87,225
8,84,12,183 9,47,86,304

7.2. Current

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Credit of Tnput VAT - 1,01,86,753
CENVANT Credit - 3,34,21,148

GST Credit (Refer Note 7.5. below) 4,47,94,546 -
Advance to vendors (refer note 7.6 below) 24,18,30,123 243939624
Prepaid expenses {refer note 7.7 below) 84,27.969 1,04,80,350
Prepaid lease-current (security deposit paid) 1,93,083 1,93,083
29,52,45,721 29,82,20,958

7.3. Includes recoverable Advances to a Sub-contractor aggregating to Rs 2,10,56,165/- (2017: Rs 2,78,13,451/-) in respect of which the sub-
contractor vendor has furnished bank guarantee to the extent of Rs 2,37,12,884/- (2017: Rx 2,37,12,884/-) which was valid upto 31 December,
2017 and the same 1s pending for renewal.
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NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31!

{Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

7.4. Under the Development Management Agreement, the Ageney is entided 1o a percentage of income caleulated in the manner specified
under the agreement. The Company has made advance payments aggregating 1o Rs. 6,39,60,556 as at 31 March, 2018 (2017: Rs. 6,39,60,556/-
- The amount will be adjusted i the vear when the agencey becomes entided 1o share of income as per the agreement or recovered. The
AManagement expects 1o adjust/recover the same in full and henee i of the view that no adjustment is necessary at this stage.

7.5. GST credits carried in books include inpur tax credit aggregating to Rs.49,67,270/- pertaining to advance payments made to vendors and
cligible tax credits on raxes paid under reverse charge mechanism, which will be claimed 10 the subsequent period when the company is eligible
to claim such credit as per the Act. The Management of the company expects to realise/ adjust these eredits in full.,

7.6. Includes recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor aggregating to Rs 22.46,48,824/-(2017: Rs 22,46,47,417/- ). The Management is in
negotiation with party for its recovery and is confident that this advance will be ultimarely fully recovered. Tlence in the view of the

NManagement no provision is considered necessary at this stage.

7.7. Includes Rs.21,77,749/- (2017: R5.94,56,354/-) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for services, on gross sale
consideration recetvable from customers. As per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale transaction, such commission is
refundable by the agency. The commission paid is charged to the Profit & T.oss Statement as and when revenue is recognized.

8. Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017
Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land , Borrowing Cost and Project Construction 1,74,08,05 271 1,53,02,49,177

and Development Cost)

1,74,08,05271  1,53,02,49,177

Also refer note 37 for further disclosure on project.

8.1 Includes Rs. 23,96,31,787/- (2017: Rs. 21,56,74,893/-) being cost incurred towards project in Goa managed by M/s. Zuari Global Limited

which is pending execution,

8.2. The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its project work-in-progress by assessing the net realisable value of the project which
is determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete {including escalations and cost overrun). T'his
review by the management did not result any loss and thus no adjustments/ provisions to the carrying value of project work-in-progress is

considered necessary by the Management,

This space has been intentionally left blank




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31°

{Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

9. Trade receivables As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good
Current

Trade recervables - Subsidiary - 15,50,00,000
I'rade recetvables - Associate 4,04,01,900 4,04,01 900

Trade receivables - olding 65,49.021 -
Trade recavables - from sale of flats/villas (refer note 9.5. below) 13,90,03.258

Trade recervables - others 8,81,980 -
Total Trade Receivables 18,68,36,159 19,54,01,900
9.1. Realisations against the above recetvables are appropriated on First-In-First-Out (1FT1°O) basis.

9.2. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing payable as per the terms of sale.

9.3. Since, the Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables, no allowance towards non recovery is considered
necessary by the Management ar this stage, as the possession and title of the property is also not transferred to these customers.

9.4. No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company cither severally or joindy with any other person.
Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a dircctor or a
member.

9.5. Recetvables in vespect of the completed projects against which demand notes are raised and pending exceution of sale deed are reported
as trade receivables.

9.6. "The rrade and project recaivables are hypothecared as sceurity for borrowings. (Refer Note 13 for details)

10. Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Balances held in banks in current account 4,54,87,920 1,60,38,881
4,54,87,920 1,60,38,881

10.1. Tncludes Rs.1,46,607/- unconfirmed balance in current accounts with a bank and arc as per the statement of account obtained from bank.
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NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018.

{Amount m Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

11, Share capital As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

111 (a) Authorised

50,000,000 (2017 : 50,000,000 I'quity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 50,00,00,000 50,00,00,000
15,000,000 (2017 : 15,000,000 Preference Shares of Rs. 10 cach 15.,00,00,000 15,00,00,000

65,00,00,000 65,00,00,000

(b.) Issued, subscribed & paid up

4,65,50,000 (2017: 4,65,50,000) I-quity Shares of Rs 10 cach 46,55,00,000 46,55,00,000
11,45,00,000 8,50,00,000
1,14,50,000 (2017 : 85,00,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of
Rs 10 cach issued ar premium of Rs. 90 cach. (Also, refer note 13.7.)

58,00,00,000 55,05,00,000

(c.) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
At the beginning of the year (of Rs 10 cach) 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000
Tssued during the year (of Rs 10 cach) - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000

(d.) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at March 31, 2018

Name of the Sharcholder As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
No's. % holding No's. % holding
Zuari Global Limited, Tolding Company 4,65,50,000 100% 4,65,50,000 100.00%

(Including 10,000 cquity shares jointly held)

Note: The abore disclosed information as per the records/ registers including Members register maintained by the Company as at the year end.
(e.) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
() The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Fach holder of equity shares is entitled to onc
vote per share.
{i1) The company has not issued any securitics convertible into equity /preference shares.
(itg) for the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared, there were:
No shares were allotred as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being received in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus sharces.
No shares were bought back.

{iv) There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvesmment.

{iv) There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares.
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{Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

12. Other equity As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

121 Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable
preference Shares:

At the beginning of the vear 4,24.95328 4,24,95,328
Liquiry component of redeemable Preference Shares issued during the vear 1,37,15,248 -
Ady. for deferred rax liability recognised on the interest portion on Preference shares (1,46,14,750;

4,15,95,826 4,24,95,328

Also refer note 13.7 for detatled disclosure on preference shares.

12.2  Security Premium Account:

(On issie of Non-convertible curmulative redeemable preference shares)

As at the beginning of the year 76,50,00,000 76,50,00,000
Add: Security premium recetved during the year 26,55,00,000 -
As at the end of the year 1,03,05,00,000 76,50,00,000

12.3 Balance in profit & Loss Statement

As at the beginning of the year. (1,21,54,864) (3,08,08,867)
Add: Profit for the Year (18,73,637; 1,81,65,763
Add: Re-measurement gains/ (loss) on defined benefit plans, not reclassified to profit or loss* 4,92,169 4,88,240
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (1,35,36,332) (1,21,54,864)

1,05,85,59,494 79,53,40,464

* The Remeasurements gains in respect of employee benefits included above are as under;

As at the beginning of the year. 9,24,294 4,36,054

Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined bencefit plans 6,65,093 7,29.403

Tncome tax cffeet on above (1,72,924) (2,41,163)

Balance carried forward to next year 14,16,463 9,24,294
13. Borrowings As at As at

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

13.1 Long-term borrowings:
Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks:
ederal Bank Limited 1,24,88,63,294 1,06,48,63,295
Less: Current Maturities (refer note 15.2) (8,33,33,333) -

1,16,55,29,961 1,06,48,63,295
Unsecured Loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from (refer note 13.6. below)

Zuari Global Limited (carried at cost) 22.08,00,000 12,48,00,000
Adventz Finance Private Limited {carried at cost) - 20,00,00,000
Less: Cuarrent Maturities (refer note 15.2) (22,08,00,000) {28,48,00,000)

- 4,00,00,000

Liability component of compound financial instrument
Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares 8,14,75,750 5,61,54,238

1,24,70,05,711 1,16,10,17,533

13.2 Short -term borrowings:
Secured Loans Term Loans from;
1CTCT Bank Limited 15,00,00,000 -

Unsecured Loans Inter-Corporate Deposits from;
Adventz Finance Private Limited (carried at cost)

20,00,00,000 -
35,00,00,000 -




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018.

{Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise srared)

13.3

13.4

Federal Bank (Term Loan)

(a) Term Joan facility of Rs. 150 Crores including overdraft facility of Rs. 5 Crores as a sublimit of the overall limits, is secured by equitable
mortgage on the Land and Building ro be constructed uader project name "Zuari Garden City " in area admeasuring to 50 Acres and 35
Gunras, Projeet recervables including all insurance and further secured by Corporate Guarantee issued by Zuart Global Limited, the
Holding Company. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility, which are in ordinary course of

business.

(b.) Terms of Repavment:

Pardculars Principal Amount No. of Interest Rate Outstanding Oustanding
Instalments Instalments Loan
(.) Term Loan for Project 1,24,88,03,294 36 Flqual 12 % hnked 10 1 36 1,24,88,63,294
Monthly Year MCLR

Draw down to the extent of Rs.1,24 88,63,294 (excluding overdraft facility) and repayable after 24 months moratorium from the date
g ) Pa)
of initial disbursement i.c., January, 2017)
(1) Overdraft Pacility 5,00,00,000 N.A 12% linked to 1 N.AL -

(sub-limit of the overall sanctioned limit) Year MCLR

(c.) There are no continuing default in repayment of Principal or Interest as at the year end.

HDFC Bank (Term Loan)
(a} Short-term unsecured loan facility for Rs.7,00,00,000/- to mecet working capital requirements of the Company. This was availed and
repaid during the year.

(1) Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Principal No. of Instalments Interest Rate Ouistanding Outstanding
Amount Instalments Loan
Short-term loan 7,00,00,000 Rs.3.5 Crores-150 days of drawdown 12% calculated N R
Rs.3.5 Crores-180 days of drawdown on 365 days

ICICI Bank (Term Loan)

(a.) Short-term loan facility for Rs.15,00,00,000/- to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The facility is secured by the
exclusive charge over the Trade Receivables (other than project receivables) of the Company and Fquitable Mortgage over the Land ar
Vrindavan, Uttar Pradesh owned by Brajbhumi Nirman Private Limited ("BNPL"™ | an associate entity. Further, irrevocable and
unconditional Corporate Guarantee from BNPL. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility, which

are in ordinary course of business

(b.) Terms of Repaymoent:

Particulars Principal No. of Instalments Interest Rate Outstanding Outstanding
Amount Instalments Loan
Short-term loan 15,00,00,000 Repavable within 180 days of drawdown. MCIR Plus NA 15,00,00,000
(Drawdown: 28th March 2018) spread of 1.25%

Inter-Corporate Deposits (Unsecured)
(a.) Zuari Global Limited, Holding Company
(i.) These are unsccured loan from Zuari Global Limited, TTolding Company to meet the working capital needs of the Company.

(i) Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Outstanding Loans during the Repaid Outstanding Rate of Interest Due Date of

01 April, 2017 Year 31 March, 2018 Repayment

Term Loan (1-4) 8,48,00,000 - 1,15,00,000 7,33,00,000 8% 30-06-2018
Term Loan-5 4,00,00,000 - - 4,00,00,000 8% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-6 - 15,00,000 - 15,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-7 - 1,30,00,000 - 1,30,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-8 - 15,600,000 - 15,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-9 - 8,00,000 8,00,000 - 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-10 - 25,00,000 25,00,000 - 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-11 - 50,00,000 - 50,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-12 - 15,00,000 - 15,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-13 - 10,00,000 - 10,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-14 - 40,00,000 - 40,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
T'erm Loan-15 - 3,50,00,000 - 3,50,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
T'erm Loan-16 - 3,50,00,000 - 3,50,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-17 - 10,00,000 - 10,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term loan-18 - 90,00,000 90,00,000 12% 29-09-2018

12,48,00,000 11,08,00,000 1,48,00,000  22,08,00,000




ZUARIT INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018.

{(Amount m Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(b.) Adventz Finance Private Limited
Unsccured Loan of Rs 20,00,00,000 /- ava interest rate of 14% paas is due on 30th June 2018, (2017: Rs. 20,00.00,000 /- at interest rate

of 14%s per annum)

Nate: The lorrowings from banks and others are carried ar their cost with interest being accrued on the nonthly basis. In the epinion of the Management had the
samre beenr anortised nsing the LIR the effect on these financial statements wonld be insignificant,

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

(a.) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year (In Numbers)
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, As at As at
issued at premium Rs 90 per share 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
At the beginning of the year 85,00,000 85,000,000
Issued during the year 29,50,000 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 85,00,000

(b.) Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of ] As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

Rs 10 cach, issued at premium Rs 90 per share. In No's In % In No's In %
Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar 85,00,000 74% 85,00,000 100%
Texmaco Infrastracture & [oldings Timited 29,50,000 26% - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 100% 85,00,000 100%

(¢c) Tesms / Rights attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one dlass of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon rate of 8.5%
per annum which are cumulative n nature and redeemable on 3tst March 2020 (70,00,000 Sharcs), 31st March 2021 (15,006,000 Sharcs)
and 31st March 2022 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. Fach holder of prefesence shares is entided to one vote per share on resolutions
placed before the company, which direetly affect the rights attached to the preference share. These shares are redeemable at a price band of

Rs 125 - Rs 150 per preference share.

{d) Pursuant to Schedule TTT of the Companies Act ("the Aet™), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 - Disclosure of Iinancial Instruments,
Non-convertible redeemable preference shares which are settled in cash needs to be dassificd as 'financial liabiliy' and not 'equiry'.
Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these preference shares considering the effective interest rate (12IR) at 14% and the
portion computed as Borrowing' amounting to Rs.8,14,75,750/-(2017:Rs. 5,61,54,238/-) has been classified under Tong-term
Borrowings' and  the portion computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs.5,62,10,576/- (2017: Rs. +4,24,95,328) has been reported
under 'Other Fquity.

With respect to premium received on issuc as well as the additional premium payable on redemption of preference shares no adjustments/
disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 rcad with Schedule TTT of the Aet, since such classification
of the 'securitics premium account’ into 'borrowings' or ‘other equity’ will be inconsistent with the provisions of section 52 of the Act
which stipulates the manner in which the securities preminm account can be urilised. Also the additional premium payable on the
redemption has not been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since recognition of such a lability will be violative of

scetion 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium amounts are required
in view of the specific provisions of contained in section 52 and 35 of the Act. Accordingly No adjustments are made as required under
Ind-AS 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule TIT of the Act.
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14, Trade pavables As at As at

March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

141 Non-Current
Retention Money - non current (canted at cost) - refer note 14,4 below 1,74,08,573 3,97,13,676
Duc to others (carried at cost) - vefer note 144 below 25,48,074 -

1,99,56,647 3,97,13,676

14.2 Current
Retention Money - current (carried at cost) 1,45,98,245 1,00,03,904
Dues to Related Parties (carried at cost) - refer note 14.3. & 14.4 below 36,92,844 1,62.90 366
Dues to others (carried at cost) 9,63,61,501 12,62,61,159

11,46,52,590 15,25,55,429

14.3 Due to Related Parties comprises of due to;

Stmon India Timited 36,92,844 36,92,844
Zaart Investments Limited - 14,84,500
Zuari Global Limited - 1,11,13,022

36,92,844 1,62,90,366

14.4 Tncludes retendon moncey Rs.1,42,78,082/- (2017: Rs. 2,75,39,698/-) and other dues Rs. 2548,074/- (R.25,48,074/-) to onc of the sub
contractors in respect of which the Management i in negotiation with party for full and the final settlement, pending which it is reported
as Non-current which is considered appropriate by the Management.

14.5 Basced on the information available with the Company, none of the vendors / service providers have identified themselves to be classified
as Micro & Small enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Aet, 2006, Accordingly, no disclosures arc
made in this regard.

15. Other Financial Liabilities As at As at

March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

15.1 Non-Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at amortised cost)

Rent Deposit 12,777,068 -
Deferred Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment) - Non-current 13,2-4,003 -
26,01,071 -

15.2 Current

Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)
Current maturity of long term loans {refer note 13) 30,41,33,333 28,48,00,000
Interest acerued and due on borrowings? - 2,06,33,901
Due to employees 63,42,472 58,34,832
Due to related parties (refer note 15.3 below) 20,09,121 9,59,560
Due to others 84,696 -
Others:
Deferred Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment)-Current 2,37,464 -
31,33,07,086 31,22,28,293
* The Management is of the view that the settdement / serviee of interest debited by the bank on the day subscquent to such debit is not a
default.
15.3 Due to related parties comprises of dues to;

Zaari Global Limited 2,85,625 -

Mr. Alok Banerjee 12,39,782 7,37,601
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal 4,00,867 1,29,037
Mr. € G5 Ramegowda 82,847 92922

20,09,121 9,59,560
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16. Provisions

As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

16,1 Non-Current
Provision for granaity obligation 33,32,168 28,19,725
Provision for compensated absences 6,160,764 14,72,489
39,48,932 42,92,214
16.2 Current
Provision for gratuiry obligation 3,28,819 1,82,650
Provision for compensated absences 3,772,691 276,263
7,01,510 4,58,913
Also, refer note 35 for detailed disclosures on emplovee benefit plans.
17. Deferred tax liability (net) As at As at

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

1714 Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
[Fair valuanion of mvestment in mutual funds 2,02,14.470 1,07,17,205
Interest on preference shares 1,46,14,750 -
Umwinding of sceurity deposit received 24,556 -
3,48,53,775 1,07,17,205
17.2  Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Unwinding of sccurity deposit paid 11,369 14,103
Interest accrued on preference shares (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS) 60,28 445 45,12,956
Difference berween accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible assets 17,98,688 22.90,965
Timing differences on benefit obligations 12,09,115 -
Orthers 2,69,049 -
MAT Fndtdement 41,80,513 75,95,063
Unused Tax Losses 3,09,53972 -
Less: Not recognised in books of account (3,09,53,972) -
1,34,97,179 1,44,13,088
2,13,56,596 (36,95,882)

Also, refer note 27 for other tax related disclosures.

17.3. The Company offscts tax assets and labilities if and only if it has a lepally enforceable right to set-off current tax assets and current tax
liabilitics and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax labilitics relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

17.4. Since the management expects that the interest on Non convertible redeemable Preference shares will not be allowed as a deduction, the

deferred tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Bquity.

18. Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Statutory dues 73,67,488 73,86,370
Advances from Customers 19,66,90,945 22.04,32,729
20,40,58,432 22,78,19,099

18.1. Advances received represents receipts from buyers in respect of the projects which are under progress and also includes also includes

amounts refundable aggregating to Rs.5,00,000/- in respeet of cancelled flats/villas,
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19. Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Sale of fars & villas

Development management tees

&

3.62.27,480

3.01,00,851

11.78,34,366
6,98,20.420

6,63,28,337

18,76,54,786

20. Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Interest Income on
Deposits with Bank
Inter-Corporate Deposits to subsidiary
Income tax refund
Others
Rent from sub-lease ( net of direetly attributable expenses Rs. 34,79.512/-)
Dividend from Mutual funds
Gains from redemption of Mutual Fund
Gain on fair value adjustments to financial assets through Profitand loss
Adjustment on amortisation of financial asscrs:
Inter-Corporate Deposits to subsidiary
Sceurity deposit
Unwinding of financial lability, sccurity deposit from sub lease
Financial Guarantee Commission from subsidiary Company (accrual)

Miscellancous income

81,514 227,854
14,36,637 546,814
5,73,824 -
32,274 24,01,415
3,62,692 -
4,63.836 .
4,44,568 11,25,067
1.85.63,201 1,72,23,241
82,06,502
1,92,010 1,78,163
237464 .
19.36,133 6,09,097
752,518 8,14,986
6,32,83,473 5,31,26,637

21. Project construction and development expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Architeet I'ees

Consultancy Fee

Depreciation on assets - Projects

Project Approval cost

Land Development

Civil Work

Landscape Lixpenses

Site Office Lixpenses

Site Sccurity Lxpenses

Project Statf Costs

Contribution to Provident & Other funds
Property Tax

Infrastructure Expenses

Miscellancous project Fixpenses

Sub Total

Add: Borrowing cost incurred during the year

Less: Balance no longer required

13,12,833 ]
675,132 9,63,639
6,36,170 8,09,194
3.03,300 .

17.82,315 6,70,105
2,83.38 802 11,44,29,053
39,65,357 44,114,999
18,80,792 38,27,795
14,606 60,94,007
4,05,46,167 1,65,62,772
18,02,507 19,36,287
16,32,949 14,88,908
1,30,62,631 2,94 38,101
6,56,761 985,714
9,96,10,622 21,16,20,573
17,83,33,070 14,97,42.614
(2,21,00,000) .
25,58,43,692 36,13,63,187

22. Changes in inventories

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Construction Work-in- progress

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Less: Transferred to other current assets

Add: Construction Cost incurred during the vear
Less: Charged off to profit and loss during the year
Inventory at the end of the year

Total (Increase) / Decrease

1,53,02,49,176 1,28,18,43,520
25,58.43,692 36,13,63,187
(4,52,87,597) (11,29.57,531)
1,74,08,05,271 1,53,02,49,176
(21,05,56,095) (24,84,05,656)
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23. Employee benefit expenses For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Salaries and wages 1,23,78,997 1,60,63 485

Contibution to provident and other funds 8,65,397 583717

Gratity §,87,990 9,25,826

Staff welfare expenses 1,90,995 3,11,812

1,43,23,379 1,78,84,839

24. Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Rent 90,89,884 65,51,794
Travel and convevance 22.88,438 21,00198
Legal and professional fees 58,38,350 53,06,767
Communication and nternet charges 7,55,696 9,07,634
Office Fxpenses 20.80,355 31,75.010
Repairs and maintenance 20,62,556 16,97.614
Auditors remuneration 6,50,112 6,47,580
Recruitment expenses 5,061,262 6,97 141
Advertising and publicity expense 38,76,698 48,56,327
Rates and taxes 3,03,213 21,75,878
Commmission & Brokerage 23,01,073 63,32,661
Security Fxpenses 13,23,240 28,58496
Miscellancous expenses 12,90,485 11,688,714

Provision for service tax refund receivable 10,34,805 -

Balances written-off 1,11,381 -
Loss on disposal of Assct 2,55,871 10,850
3,38,23,420 3,85,06,663

24.1 Remuneration to Auditors' reported above includes

Statutory Audit ees 5.00.000 5,00.000
Tax Audit Fees 75,000 75.000
Certification fees 50.000 50.000
Out of pocket expenses 25,112 22,580
6,50,112 6,47,580

25. Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest expense:
Interest on borrowings 19,23,38,957 18,69,55,536
Interest on delayed payment of Income tax 1,43,064 -
Interest on delayed payment of Tax deducted at Source 4,594 -
Fatr value adjustment mitial recognition of loans 4,060,948 -
Fatr value adjustment initial recognition of sccurity deposits 1,43,018 -
Fair value adjustment to Preference Shares 95,36,759 68,79,601
20,26,27.339 19,38,35,137
Less: Transfer to Project Construction and Development expenses 17,83,33,070 14,97 42,614
2,42,94,269 4,40,92,523

25.1. Capitalisation of the Borrowing cost is not required to be suspended when substantial rechnical and administrative work is carried our
or when there is a temporary delay which is a necessary part of the process of getting an asset ready for sale. The Management is of the view
that the slow progress of various real estate projects are temporary in nature considering the nature of industry and the cconomic conditions

prevailing in the industry. Nccordingly, capitalisation {(transfer to inventory) of interest cost is not suspended during the year.
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26. Depreciation and amortization expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Deprecration of tangible assers 2395222 21,90,909
Amortsation of intangible assets 3,94,669 11,111,355
Less: Depreciation on leasehold improvements attributable to sub-lease income (3,72,005)
netted off against sublease income.
24,17,886 33,02,264
27. Income Tax For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 Match 31, 2017
Income tax expense 6,00,000 28,87,707
Income tax of earlier year 4,774,091 -
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 1,02,64,805 2984134
Total 1,13,38,896 58,71,840

27.1 Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Gain on fair value adjustments to preference shares - (32,38,935)
Expenses not considered for tax purposes. 1,15,169 3,37,563
Gain on fair value adjustments to Mutual funds taxable at differential rate (31,29,168) (32,54,540)
Interest portion fair value adjustment to preference shares issued 9,64,069 (1,48,8006)
Other adjustments (11,35,149) (18,652)
Tax effect on unused tax losses not recognised 75,74,367 47,67,590
Tax expenses of earlier year debited to profit and loss 4,74,091 -
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) of eatlier year debited to profit and loss 40,14,550 -

1,13,38,896 58,71,840

27.2 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes in deferred tax
are as follows:

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds 94,97,264 80,98,506
Unwinding of security deposit paid 2,734 (4,933)
Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS) (15,15,489) (22,74,602)
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible assets 492,278 (53,015)
Unwinding of security deposit received 24,556 -
Temporary differences on benefit obligations (12,09,115) -
Others temporary differences (2,69,049) -
MAT Credit of the eatlier year charged off 40,14,550 -
MAT Credit (6,00,000) (25,40,060)
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income (1,72,924) (2,41,163)

1,02,64,805 29,84,134

27.3. Deferred tax assets arising from the carry forward of unused tax losses not are recognised in these financial statements as there is no
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the

Company, which is considered appropriate by the Management,

27.4. The effective tax rate applicable to the company for the subsequent years is reduced from 30.90% to 26% as per the recent
amendments to Income Tax Law. Accordingly, amended rate has been considered for the computation of Deferred Tax.

This space has been intentionally left :blank
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28. Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

28.1. Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZITL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 investments
(1) “Zuart Infra Middle Tast Led UAT 100% 100%% L by line
consolidation

28.2. Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 investments
(1) Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25% Lquity .\ccounting
(i) Darshan Nirman Private Limited India 25% 25% Lquity Accounting
(1) Pranati Niketan Private Limited India 25% 25% l=quity Accounting

29. Commitments and Contingencies

29.1. Leases

Operating lease - as lessee

The Company has taken office premises on an 11 Year operating lease. The lease rentals recogmzed in the Income & Lxpenditure account for
the year are Rs.1,16,41,104/-
Rentals charged to the profit and loss statement and obligations on long term non-cancellable operating leases pavable as per the rentals

excl. tax (2017: Rs. 57,72,792/-) . The future lease payments of operating lease are as given below. Lease

3

stated in the respective lease agreements:

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Lease rentals recognized during the year 1,16,41,104 57,72,792
Lease Obligations
- Within one year 1,22,75,046 1,16,41,104
- After one year but not more than five years 5,53,33,873 5.27,76,580
- More than five years 3,21,96,950 4,70,28,388

29.2. Contingent Liabilities

(# Dividend liability on Non Convertible redeemable cumualative preference shares 294,061,231 1,52,54,704
(1) TS demand under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACLES, not acknowledged as debt. 8,22,298 -

29.3. Capital and Other Commitments

() listimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on Project construction and development aggregates to Rs.25,87,26,691/-
(2017:Rs.52,55,83,187/-).

(i) The Company has fumished Stand-by Letter of Credit (SBLC) with the sanctioned limit of ALD 105 million (approximately Rs.177.6
Crores) in favour of National Bank of Fajairah (NBF) and State Bank of India (SBT), Dubat obtained from State bank of India. This facility is
with respect to term loan facilities availed by Zuari Tnfraworld Middle Fast Limited, UAT | a Wholly owned subsidiary from that bank. This
facility is sccured by investments held in mutual funds by the Company as reported in Note 4 and further secared by the land owned by the
Zuari Global Limited, the holding Company. Guarantee Outstanding as at the reporting date is AED 4,19,00,000 (NBF) and USD 71,88,462
(SBI) 22017: AL 41,900,000)

The loan disbursed and remaining outstanding as at 31st March 2018 was AEID 3,97,20,000/- against the above guarantees furnished. (2017
AL 3,97,20,000/-)

30. Earnings Per Share ("EPS")

Basic Farnings Per share (1KPS) amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Iquity shares ourstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares, accordingly the Diluted
LIPS are also calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding
during as at the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the compurtation of basic and dilured 1XPS

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Profit before OCT atreibutable to equity holders of the parent company (18,73,637) 1,81,65,763
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing 15PS (Basic & Diluted) 4,65,50,000 4,65,50,000
Parning/J.oss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs) (0.04) (.39

Face value per share (Rs) 10.00 10.00
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial labilitics, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, sceurity deposies, and employee
dues. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its

operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, vade and other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that

derive direetly from 1t operanons.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Company’s sentor management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s sentor management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is predominantly into the real estate secror which s subjeet

to The Real Pstate (Regulation and Devalopment) Act, 2016 (REERA).

31.1. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in marker
prices. Marker risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as cquity price risk and
commodity risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments w mutual
funds.
(i.) Interest rate risk:

Tnterest rate 1isk is the risk that the fair value or furure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuare because of changes in

market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-

term debrt obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Term

Loan facility from I'ederal Bank and Short term loan facility from 1CICT Bank Limited is subject to floating rate of interest based on

MCLR, while the borrowings from the related entities carry interest ar a fixed rates.

Interest sensitivity analysis Outstanding Increase/  Effect on profit
Loan facility  decrease in before tax
subject to basis points

floating rates

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Increase in base pomts 1,39,88,63,294 +50 69,94,316
Deerease in base points 1,39,88,63,294 -50 (69,94,316)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Increase n base points 1,06,48,63,295 +50 5324316

Deerease in base points 1,06,48,63,295 -50 (53,24,310)

(ii.) Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign

exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s
operating activities (when revenue ot expense is denominated in a forcign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign
subsidiarics.

There is no significant currency risk as substantially all financial asscts and financial liabilitics are denominated i Indian Rupees,

except for investment in wholly owned subsidiary which is denominated in foreign currency.

(i1i.) Equity price risk
The Company’s non-listed equity sceuritics are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertaintics about future values of the

investment securitics. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all Tnvestment decisions.

31.2. Credit risk
Credit risk s the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activitics {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing

activitics, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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Trade receivables
Sale of Flats & Villas:

Customer credit risk is managed by " CRM wam "

subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relatng 1o
customer credit risk management. Outstanding customer dues with respect 1o Customers demands are regularly monitored for
proactive actions. The unpaid customers demands are included under 'Unbilied Revenue!' computed as per the revenue recognition
norms stipulated i Guidance note on Real Tstare Transactions ( for the entities to whom Ind AS is apphicable) issued by The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India to the extent such demands related to projects o progress. In respece of completed

projects such demands are included under rrade receivables.

Development Management Fees:

Apart from real estate activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Recetvables includes dues from
these activities which s aggregated to Rs. 4,67,14,322/- (2017: Rs 19,54,01,900)

An impairment analysis is performed at cach reporting date on an individual basis for these entities. 'The Company does not hold
collaterals as sccurity. The Company cvaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as its customers are

related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is exccuted only after the realisation.

31.3. Liquidity risk

‘The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
The Company’s objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibiliey through the use of bank loans and Debt
Preference Shares. The Company is in the process of assessing the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt

preference shares and it is of the opinion that had the same been assessed the effect of the same would be insignificant.

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Purther

the Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas and is also ensured of continued

support from its Holding/ Associates Companics and the Promoters.

31.4. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issucd equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure
their ability to continue as going concern and maximise the sharcholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements
of the financial covenants. T'o maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders,
return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by

total capital plus net debr.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments as at 31 March, 2018:

Particulars On demand < 3 month 3 to 12 months 1to 3 years > 3 years Total
Borrowings - 27,33,00,000 38,08,33,333 1,24,70,05,711 - 1,90,11,39,044
(Incl. Debt portion of Preference Shares)

Trade payables . 5,27.18,514 6,65,12,463 1,43,78,260  10,00,000 13,46,09,237
Oyther financtal liabilites - 88,51,593 78,697 87,525 27.57,009 1,17,74,824
Total - 33,48,70,107 44,74,24,493 1,26,14,71,496  37,57,009 2,04,75,23,105

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments as at 31 March, 2017:

Particulars On demand < 3 month 3 to 12 months 1to 3 years > 3 years Total
Borrowings - - 28,48,00,000 1,16,10,17,533 - 1,44,58,17,533
(Lucl. Debt portions of Prejeresice Shares)

Trade payables - 2,75,23,106 12,50,32,323 3,97.13,676 - 19,22,69,105
Oxther fimancial Habilities 2,06,33,901 67,94,392 - - - 2,74,28,293
Total 2,06,33,901 3,43,17,498 40,98,32,323 1,20,07,31,209 - 1,66,55,14,931
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32. Related Party Disclosures

32.1. List of Related Parties and nature of relationship where control exists:

Holding Company
Subsidiary

Step down Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiaries

Associates

Key Management Pessonnel

Director of holding company

32.2. Transactions with related parties:
Particulars

i. Payments made on their behalf by the Company:

Zuar Tnfra Middle Fast Limited

Zuart Global Limited

Zuart Infra Middle Iast Limieed

Zuan Infraworld SJM Properties FLC (formerdy SIN Ehvstum Propernies 1LECS

Zaar Management Services Linmited

Simon India Limited

Zaart Finserv Pyt Lid. (erst. Zaart Investment Lid. demerged wee f 191

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited

Darshan Nirmaan Privace Limired

Pranati Niketan Private Limited

Mr. Alok Bzmufjcc, Chicf Fxecutive Officer

Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Fmancial offices
Mr. Kiishan Kumar Guprta, Independent Director

1.2017)

Mr. \'i:;h\\ﬁ\fit Kumar Sinha, Non-liecutive Director (Resigned wee f. 24.03.2018)

Mr. Sunil Sethy, Independent Director
My Naravanan Suresh Krishnan, Director
Me CG Raﬁﬁcéo\x)dm Company secretany
Mz Saroj Kumar Poddar

Year ended
March 31, 2018

Year ended March

31, 2017

2,24,57,391

‘Note: Transactions during the year ended 2018 1s exclusive of taxes

Zuari Agro Chemicals Limited 21,26,186 14,58,652
it .Payrhexit made on our behalf by the Company: ‘
Zuart Global Limited 285,625
i Service Charges / Management Fees Paid ’
Zuar inserv Pyt Led. (erstwhile Zuard Investment Lid. demerged w.ef. 19.11.2017) 5,000 31,500
iv Service Charges / Maﬁagérﬁém Fees Income
Brajbliurnt Nirrnaan Private Lionied : 75,00,000
Y.uari Global Limited 2,19,00,851 -
Zuari Infra Middle Fast Limited- Management Fecs 6,00,00,000
Zuari Infra Middle Iiast Limited (Financial Guarantee charges) 19,306,433 6,09,097
v Aylmer»Corporaterljepbsitrs Given- Asset ' '
Zuari Infra Middle East Lirnited
- Given 11,15,82,714 -
- Recovered 3,33,21,624 ' $51,27,848
¥ >Ihiér¥Corporaie Deposits Taken - Li;ib‘il‘ity V - k
Zuari Global Limited :
- Accepted 11,08,00,000 4,00,00,000
- Repayment 1,48,00,000 7.60,00,000
" vii ‘Interest on ICD seceived (Expenscs) o
Zuari Global Limited 1,20,82,388 97,43,181
wiii Interest on ICD given - Income (incl! édiustineiii on aitﬁdniéyr;fiéx”nr) R . S
Zuad Infra Middle East Limited 96,43,139 5,460,814
! ix ‘Reimbursement of Expenses receivca/ receivable o o o
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 1,00,37,361 ¢ 26,606,159
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32.3. Key management personnel compensation:

%Pyarticulars As at Asat
i March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 |
1. Short-term employee benefits R ) ' ! -
Mr. Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer 99,78,338 95,21,328
"Mz, Anshul Amit Bansal, Chicf Financial officer o 22,39,661 19,04,460
MrCG Ramcg&vdé‘, Company sccrerary 12,62,986 2,99,108
ii. Retirement benefits (Providé;i fund and Grauuty) -
Mr. Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer i - "),84,568 o 7";17{,78‘1 i
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer 1,32,183 1,12,515
5;\«{ . C (g’zl‘(vnmcgowdn, Company secretary 74,244 17,506
i. Sitting fees o ) )
ctors sitting fees to Non-executive Divectors 5,35,000 ¢ 5,72,500
[ Totul compensation ‘ - ) 1,48,06,980 | 1,27,71,201
32.4. Year-end balances
' Teade payable e e e i JVon oo ‘
_ Matrch 31, 2018 March 31,2017
"Zuari Global Limieed T i ) 11113022
dia d 36,92,844 36.92,844
! .u:mFmscn Private Limited : ) - 14,84,500
i, Other payable - | As at | Acat
: I March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Mr. Alok Banerjec e 12,39,782 737,601
‘Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal o 4,00,867 03"
nﬂégowdam T 82,847 N
“Zuan Global Limited ) i 285,625 -
iiif. Trade receivable S i Asat " Asar
March 31,2018 ° March 31, 2017
’ 155000000
B ) ) - : 4,04,01,900 4,()4,()1)‘)00’;3
! 65,49,021 T
liv Ex;ﬁcnscs Recoverable Asat CAsat
; March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
{Brajbhumi Nirmaan Privatc Limited 1,57,32,604 | 86,012
“Zuari Infra Middle Liast Limited 53639055 38410077
v. Loans (o related pasties: T Asac T Asat
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2
7,78,00,142 '
gZiuari Infra Middlc Fast Limited (Deferred Interest fair value adjustment) 82,006,502 -
ivi. Loans from related parties: As at " Asat i
! March 31,2018 | March 31,2017
lobal Limited 22,08,00,000 12,48,00,000 |
ivii. Other year-end balances ; As at Asat’ :
I ‘ B | March 51,2018 | March31,2017
|(a) Included in Project Work-in-Progress
“Zuai Global Limited. i " 23,96,31,787 21,56,74,893 |
{Zuari Infra Middle East Limited. T Tae01 ] 155,090

Service Income cc'rrue'd'and no
uari Infra M}igldlc‘ ast Limited.
Zuari Global Limited.

32.5. Terms and conditions

Al transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent o those that preva

business.

T 1324230
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33: Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, other than
those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Particulars Carrying value Fair value
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

(a.) Financial assets

(i.) FVPL financial instruments:

Un-Quoted mutual funds 97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750 97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750

Preference Shares held in Associate Company 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692

(ir.) Amortised Cost:

Sceurity deposits 26,69,046 2477035 26,69,046 2477 035

I.oan to Subsidiary 7,78,00,142 - 7,78,00,142 -
Total 1,12,35,32,666 50,15,13,477 1,12,35,32,666 50,15,13,477

(b.) Financial liabilities

(1.) Amortised Cost:

Preference shares (debt portion) 8,14,75,750 5,61,54,238 8,14,75,750 5,61,54,238
Sccurity deposit towards sub lease 12,77,068 - 12,77,068 -
1CTCT Bank Led - Term Toan 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000 -
IFederal Bank Ltd-Term Loan 1,24,88,63,294 1,06,48,63,295 1,24,88,63,294 1,06,48,63,295
Total 1,48,16,16,112 1,12,10,17,533 1,48,16,16,112 1,12,10,17,533

Other Notes:

(1) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, frade receivables, retention money, inter corporate deposits,
loan to related party and trade payables approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maruritics of these instruments, The
fair value of the financial assets and liabilivies is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction

berween willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation salc.
RN . 1 < o 1 . - s oty WS e
(1) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

{a) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate Borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest Rates, specific
country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation,

allowances are taken into account for the expected credit losses of these reccivables, if any.

(b.) The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCEF model and considering the future cash outflow in this
regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model inputs, including
forccast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and volatility. The probabilitics of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably

assessed and are used in management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference shares.

c¢.) The fair values of the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrying amounts i.e., cost as at the end of
8 & ying >

the reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed ro be insignificant.
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34. Fair Hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities.

(a.) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets:

Fair value measurement using

Assets: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(i.) FVPL financial instruments:
Investments in Murual funds 97,76,48,786 - 97,76,48,786 -

(1,06,48,63,295)

- (1,06,48,63,295) -

Preference shares held in Associare 6,54,14,692 - - 6,54,14,692
(6,54,14,692) - - (6,54,14,692)
(ii.) Amortised Cost:
Loan to Subsidiary 7,78,00,142 - 7,78,00,142 -
Security deposits (Fiability) 26,69.046 26,69,046 -
(24,77,035) (24,77,035) -

(b.) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hicrarchy for liabilities:

Fair value measurement using

Liabilities: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(i.) Borrowings:
[iederal Bank Led - Term Loan 1,24,88,63,294 - 1,24,88,63,294 -
(1,06,48,63,295) (1,06,48,63,295)
Preference shares (debt portion) 8,14,75,750 - - 8,14,75,750
(5,61,54,238) - - (5,61,54,238)
1CICT Bank Ltd - Term Loan 15,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000 -
(ii.) Security deposit (At amortised cost)
Security deposit towards sub lease 12,77,068 - 12,777,068 -

(1) Amounts in the parenthests represent previous year.

(i) There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the year.

(c) The Company has not valued the Financial guarantee that it has extended to its wholly owned subsidiary to its fair value. 1t is the opinion

of the Management that, had the same been valued it would not have any significant impact on these financial statements.
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35. Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

As at 31 March 2018

As at 31 March 2017

Current Non-current Current Non-current
Value of Plan - Grarity (Un-Funded) 3,28,819 33,32,109 1,82,650 2§,19,725
3,28,819 33,32,169 1,82,650 28,19,725

Gratuity:

The Company has a defined benetir gratuity plan. Bivery employee who has completed five years or more of service gets gratuity on

departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service.

‘The following tables summatise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

(i.) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current Service Cost 10,52,900 11,72,356
Past Service cost-{non vested benefits) 2460 -
Past Service cost-(vested benefits) 1,81,164 -
Net Interest Cost 1,97,179 1,90,674
(ii.) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions -

(Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (2,26,549) 1,65,534
Tixperience (gaing) / losses (4,38,544) (8,95,943)
(iii.) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Opening defined obligation 30,02,375 27,43,159
Current service cost 10,52,900 11,72,356
Past Scrvice cost-{non vested benefits) 2,460 -
Past Service cost-{vested benefits) 1,81,164 -
Interest cost 1,97,179 1,90,674
Contribution paid (1,09,997) (3,74,405)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations (6,65,093) (7,29,409)
Defined benefit obligation 36,60,988 30,02,375

(iv.) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

As at
31 March 2018

As at
31 March 2017

Mortality TALN (2006-08) Ul
Interest / Discount Rare 7.48%
Rate of increase in compensation 9%
Expected average remaining service 9.16

Rs. 20,00,000
P80 to 40 years: 8%

Benefir of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

Fmployce Attrition Rate (Past Serviee)

TATN £2006-08) Ulr,

6.69%
9%
9.02

Rs. 10,00,000

PS: 0 to 40 years: 8%




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018.

{Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(v.) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2018
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1%% decreasce +1%0 increase -1% decrease
Impact on definedbencfir obligation 34,006,769 3952077 39,34 .433 34,117,247
Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2017
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1% decrease +1% mcerease -1% decrease
Impact on definedbencfic obligation 27,89,367 32,47,185 32,19,083 27.99,040

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefir obligation as a

result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Within the next 12 months 3,28,819 1,82,650
Between 2 and 5 years 15,19,877 15,69,335
Between 5 and 10 years 24,65,278 32,54,386
Total expected payments 43,13,974 50,06,371

Note: The above disclosures are based on the vabwation report by the independent actuary and relied upon by the anditors.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount in Rupees, except otherwise stated)

36. Segment Information

Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108
g 2 g oeg P gasp

The Chicf TFinancial Officer monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about

resource allocation and performance assessment. Accordingly, the Company has identificd only one segment i.e., real estate sector as s

reportable segment for the purpose of Ind AS 108:

Real Estate scgment (R19) s into development, sale, management and operation of all or any part of townships, housing projects, includes

leasing of sclf owned commercial premises and also rendering development management services and thus entire business has been

considered as a single operating component by the Management.

36.1. The following table presents assets and liabilities information for the Company’s operating scgments as at year end:

Geographical information Non-current assets Revenue from operations
As at As at for the year ended for the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Tndia 11.56.40,000 12.65.63,599 6.03.28.337 12,76.54,786
Qutside India (Dubar) - - - 6,00,00,000
11,56,40,090 12,65,63,599 6,63,28,337 18,76,54,786
Note:
(1)Scgment Assets disclosed above includes Re. Nil (2017: Rs.13,17,539/-) being capital work-in-progress.
(i} Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Investment in subsidiaries & Associates, financial instruments, deferred tax assets,

post-employment benefit assets ctc.,.

36.2. Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Vuari Global Limited 2,19,00,851 -

Swiss Cottage Infraworld 82,00,000

Yaari Infra Middle 1<ast Limited - 6,00,00,000

Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited - 98,20,420

Total 3,01,00,851 6,98,20,420

37. Disclosures relating to Projects:

Particulars

For the year ended
31st March, 2018

For the year ended
31st March, 2017

Project revenue recognized as revenue in the reporting period

Aggregate amount of costs incurred and profits recognised (less recognised

losses) upto the reporting date,

Amount of advance received on project under progress and outstanding at the reporting,
Amount of work in progress and the value of inventorics

Fxeess of revenue recognised over actual bills raised (unbilled revenue)

Method used w determine project revenue recognised during the year

NMethod used to determine the stage of completion of projects in progress

3,62,27 486
1,67,73,54,476

19.66.90,045
1,74,08,05,27
1,80,72,074
Refer Note 2 (j)
Refer Note 2 (j)

11,78,34,366
1,64,10,29,138

22,04,32,729
1,53,02,49,177
24,55,99,582
Refer Note 2 ()
Refer Note 2 (j)

* Doces not include Rs.13,90,03,256/- receivable towards completed projects which are pending cxecution of sale deeds and are reported

under trade receivable in Note 9.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{Amount in Rupees, except otherwise stated)

38. In the opinion of the Management none of the assets, other than fixed asscts, have a value lower on realisaton in the ordinary course of
business than the amount ar which they are stated in these financial statements. Accounts of most of the Trade Payables, Trade Recervables,

loans & advances and Customer Advances are subject to confirmations.

The accompanying notes forms an integral pare of the standalone financial starements

As per oir report of the even date atfached
For and behalf of the Board of Directors of FFor VARMA & VARMA

Zuari Infraworld India Limited Chartered Accountanis
v

RN 0045328
Rl ki AN p C i 1
N SURESH KRISHNAN -

K P SRINIVAS
Director

Parter
DIN: 00021965 M. No. 208520

P
ANSHUL A. BANSAL

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Gurgaon
Dare: 21 May, 2018

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018
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Chartered Accountants
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
Zuart Infraworld India Limited, Bangalore.

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of M/s Zuati
Infraworld India Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding and its subsidiary
collectively referred to as “the Group™) and its associates, comprising of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at 31" March 2018, the Consolidated Profit and Loss Statement (including other
comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated Ind AS financial statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) that give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including
other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity of the
Group including its associates, in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act and
the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Estate Transactions issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that ate reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements based
on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the
accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Those standards requite that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial state \ts are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal financial controls relevant to the Holding Company’s preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedutes that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
approptiateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Holding Company’s Boatd of Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph below, is sufficient and
approptiate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on consolidated financial statements of the
subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so tequired and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the consolidated state of
affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2018 and their loss including other comprehensive loss, their
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Other Matter

We did not audit the consolidated financial statements of One foreign subsidiary, whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs.1,64,93,67,247 as at 31st March, 2018, total revenues of Rs.14,839
and net cash outflows amounting to Rs.66,28,268 for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements also include the Group’s
share of total comprehensive loss of Rs.4,39,314 for the year ended 31st March, 2018, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three associate Companies incorporated in
India, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been
audited by other auditors whose teports have been furnished to us by the Management and our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of the foreign subsidiary and three associate companies incorporated in India, and
our tepott in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the Act, insofar as it relates to the
aforesaid subsidiaties, jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the repotts of the
other auditors.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As requited by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports
of the other auditors on consolidated financial statements of a subsidiary and associates, as noted
in the ‘Other Matter’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books;

() The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the
consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity dealt
with by this Report are in agteement with the relevant books of account and records
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act and the Guidance Note
on Real Estate Transactions issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31 Matrch 2018 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its associate companies incorporated in
India, none of the Directors of the Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as
on 31 March 2018 from being appointed as a Director of that company in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
'Annexure-A'; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

() The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on the financial position of the Group and its associates.- Refer Note 29.2 to the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(i) The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The Group did
not have any derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

(i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its associate companies
mncorporated in India.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 0045325

= .. N
Coarvvan - WE

~ K P SRINIVAS

Place of signature: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 21* May, 2018 M.No0.208520
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ANNEXURE A TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Zuari Infraworld
India Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2018, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial repotrting of Zuari Infraworld India Limited (hereinafter referred to as the
“Holding Company™) and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its associate companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
consideting the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
ordetly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Out responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or etror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by other
auditors of its associate companies, which are companies incorporated in India, in terms of their
reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal fi ontrols system over financial reporting of the
Holding Company and its associate companies mpanies incorporated in India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for extetnal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that; (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, ot disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error ot fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial repotting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, ot
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its associate companies, which are companies incorporated
in India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)() of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to the three associate
companies, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the corresponding repozrts
of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For VARMA & VARMA
Chartered Accountants
FRN 004532S

=

> }\j"‘\ﬁ“\.&\ffh’i A P

K P SRINIVAS

Place of signature: Gurgaon Partner
Date: 21™ May, 2018 M.No.208520
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

(Mmount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET Note As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and cquipment 3.1 2.75,08,734 2,09,22.4006
(h) Capital work in progress 3.2 13,17,539
(e} Goodwill on consolidation 41 58,74,579 58,74,579
{d) Other inangible assets 3.3 1,79,734 5,90,625
{¢.) Financial asscrs:
(1) Investments 4.1 1,27,38,37 575 73,02,49,853
(1) Loans 5.1 - 3,74,154
(11.) Other financial asscts 6.1 56,72,001 27,17,235
(£) Delerred tax asset (ner) 17 - 37,72,360
{g.) Income tax asscts (ner) 1,15,59,458 1,54,67,050
{h.) Other non current assets 7.1 40,10,57,183 28,01,63,804
1,78,56,89,264 1,06,74,49,605
Current assets
{a) Inventories 8 2,92,03,16,979 2,18,34,73,943
(b.) Financial assets
(1.) 'Trade receivables 9 18,68,36,159 4,04,01,900
(i) Cash & cash cquivalent 10 4,74,68,990 2,46,48,218
(11.) Loans 5.2 50,02,346 61,06,362
() Other financial assets 6.2 4,57,93,533 26,08,88,254
(c.) Other current assets 7.2 30,63,87,736 29,82,20,958
3,51,18,05,743 2,81,37,39,635
5,29,74,95,008 3,88,11,89,240
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Liquity share capital 11 46,55,00,000 46,55,00,000
(b.) Other equity 12 1,00,48,62,334 77,10,13,380
1,47,03,62,334 1,23,65,13,380
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Tanancial liabikities
(1) Borrowings 13.1 1,71,52,73,707 1,16,10,17,533
(1) Trade payables 14.1 1,99,56,647 3,97,13,676
(111) Other financial liabilitics 15.1 6,23,90,435 -
(b.) Provisions 16.1 39,48,932 4292214
{¢) Deferred tax labiliey (net) 17 2,12,80,118 -
1,82,28,49,839 1,20,50,23,423
Current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 13.2 1,35,18,79,612 71,20,07,083
(11) Trade payables 14.2 12,11,65,732 18,15,38,495
(n1.) Other financial liabilitics 15.2 32,17,46,821 31,51,27,633
{b.) Other current labilities 18 20,67,73,417 23,05,20,314
(c.) Provisions 16.2 27,17,253 4,58,913
2,00,42,82,835 1,43,96,52,437
5,29,74,95,008 3,88,11,89,240

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

This is the balancs sheet referved to i our report of the even date attached.

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuart Infrawordd India Limited

g \f\lw\/{\ k‘-« \isz\« PP

N SURESH KRISHNAN

Director

D”\ 0002 9()’1

SHULA BANSAL
(.lml Financial O fficer

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018

(.ompnn_\' N-crcmry

For VARMA & VARMA,

Chartered Accountants

RN 0045328

gmvm- l'?'

K P SRINIVAS
Partner

M. No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon

Date: 21 May, 2018



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

(Amount in Rupcees, unless orherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT

Notes For the year ended

March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

REVENUE:
Revenue from operations
Other mcome

Total Revenues

EXPENSES:

Purchase of stock, sub contract charges and other cost of project
Changes in stock of finished goods, stock-in-trade and Work-in-progress
Fiployee bencfie expenses

Orther expenses

Total expenses

Profit Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation & Amortisation

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expensce

Loss before tax expenses and share in net profit/(loss) of associates
Profit/(Loss) before share in net profit/(loss) of associates
Profit/(Loss) before tax expenses

Tax expenses:

Current tax expense

Tax expenses of carlier years
Deferred tax

Tax Expenses for the year (net)

Loss for the year before other comprehensive income/ (loss)

Other comprehensive income/ (Loss)
Ttenss that will not be reclassified subseguently to profit or loss

Fxchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations

Other comprehensive income

Itenrs that will not be veclavsified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of gratuity obligation
Deferred tax on above items

Total Other Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss)
Earning/(Loss) per share (in Rs.)

Basic & Diluted

Weighted average pumber of shares used m computing Rarnings per share

19 6,63,28,337 12,57,79.786
20 5,17,18,740 5,32,13,732
11,80,47,077 17,89,93,518
21 78,21,30,634 57,39,32,451
22 (73,68,43,037) (46,09,74,920)
2 2,54,83,853 4471210
24 4,69,52,433 3,45,58,172
11,77,23,883 15,19,86,913
3,23,194 2,70,06,605
25 1,50,97,938 4,42,67,580
2 43,14914 16,92,950
(1,90,89,657) (1,89,53,925)
(4,39,314) 9,89,463
(1,95,28,971) (1,79,64,462)
27
6,00,000 28,87,707
4,774,091 .
1,02,64,805 29,84,134
1,13,38,896 58,71,840
(3,08,67,867) (2,38,36,302)
(3,75,846) (84,99,156)
6,65,093 7,290,403
(1,72,924) (2,41,163)
1,16,323 (80,10,916)
(3,07,51,544) (3,18,47,217)
30
(0.66) ©.51)
4,65,50,000 4,65,50,000

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuart Infraworld Indsa Limited

Lo e

N SURESH KRISHNA

Dircctor

DIN: 00021965
//’7 —
ANSHUL A. BANSAL

Chief Tinancial Officer

SUNIL SETHY
Dircctor
DIN: 00244104

Company Sceretary

Place: Gurgaon
Dace: 21 May, 2018

This is the Profit <& Loss Statenent referred to in our report of the even date attacihed.
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

FRN 0045328

K P SRINIVAS
Partmer

M. No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018




ZUART INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

(Nmount in Rupees, exeept otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended

31 March 2018

For the year ended

31 March 2017

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net Profit before taxation (1,95,28,971) (1,79,64,462)
Adjustment for :
Depreciation & Amorusaton 53,23, 090) 49,758,842
Foreign currency translation reserve (4,37,202) (85,26,177)
Loss on sale of tangible assers (net) 255,871 10,856
Interest Income 7,02,452 (26,29,269)
Short Term Capital Gain - Mutual Fund (4,44,568) (11,25,067)
orvidend from Murual funds (4,63,836) -
Gain on fair value adjustments to hnancml assets through profic or loss (4,85,63,201) (4,72,23,241)
Fair value adjustment to security deposits, net. (94,445) -
Provision towards service refund recervable 10,34,805 -
Adjastment on amorusation of financial asscts, net 1,073 -
Re=-measurement gains on defined benefit plans through OCT 6,65,003 7,29,403
Fair value adjustment to preference shares issued 95,36,759 -
Adjustments for share of (profits) /loss in subsidiary 4,39.314 (9,49,463)
Orher Adjustments 1,11,381 9,00,351
Operating Profit/(Loss) before working Capital Changes (5,14,62,386) (7,18,38,232)
Adjustment for o Z
Deerease/(Inerease) i trade receivables (1-4,65,45,640) (78,67,500)
(Increase) / Decrease in financial and Other assets 2,85,24,146 1,54,76,344
(Increase) / De s¢ i Inventories (73,68,43,1136) (46,09,74,920)
(Decreasey/Increase m ‘Trade Payables (8,01,29,792) 3,91,74,350
(Deerease)/Inerease in Provisions 19,15,058 2,771,919
(Decrease)/Increase in Financial and other habilities 2.59,29,393 3,90,39,826)
Net cash generated from operations (95,86,12,257) (52,47,97,865)
Direct Taxes Pad (net of refund mel. Interest on refund) 22,59,679 (30,17,927)
Net cash gencrated from operating activities (95,63,52,578) (52,78,15,792)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Additions to tangible/intangible assets (45,32,208) (1,54,99,264)
Proceeds from sale of tangible /intangible assets 1,56,704 19,605
Investments in Mutual Funds (72,95,96,097) (13,00,06,78)
Proceeds from sale of Tnvestments in Murtual Funds 23,50,40,665 13,11,31,847
Changes m other bank balances (49,07,610) 19,34,78,562
Interest recerved (1,28,628) 26,29,269
Net cash from Investing activities (50,39,67,174) 18,17,53,238
(.. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds from Issue of Preference shares at a premium of Rs. 90 per share. 29,50,00,000 -
Proceeds from Short-term Borrowings (net) 63,98,72,529 -
Proceeds from Long-term Borrowings (net) 54,82,67,995 15,42,40,747
Net cash used in financing activities 1,48,31,40,525 15,42,40,747
Net Changes in Cash and Cash equivalents during the year 2,28,20,772 (19,18,21,807)
Cash and Cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year 2,46,48,218 21,64,70,025
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 4,74,68,990 2,46,48,218
Disclosure pursuant to Ind-AS 7

Particulars As at Cash Flow Transferred to Non-Cash Adj. As at 31.03.2017

01.04.2017 Securities Premium (Fair Value
Account Adjustments)

Preference Shares (Debt Component) 5,61,54,238 29,50,00,000 (26,55,00,000) (41,78,489) 8,14,75,749

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zuari Infraworld India Limited

g‘WWL k b~

N SURESH KRISHNAN
Dircctor {
TIN: 00021P65 s

0
ANSHUL A. BANSAL

Chief Financial Officer

SUNIL SETHY

Company Sceretary

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018

This is the Cash Vow staterent referred fo i our report of the eren date attachsd
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

FFRN 0045328

Sooaauts Wb

K P SRINIVAS
Partner
M. No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon

DPate: 21 May, 2018




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED

(Amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A. Equity share capital

As at 31 March, 2017 46,55,00,000
As at 31 March, 2018 46,55,00,000
B. Other equity
Particulars Securities Equity Retained OCI Reserve Total

premium Component of earnings (Forcign

account convertible Currency

preference shares Transtation
Reserve)

Balance as at 1 April, 2016 76,50,00,000 4,24 95328 (1,36,95,500) 90,60,769 80,28,60,597
Profit for the year - - (2,38,36,301) (2,38,36,301)
Adjustments for the year - - (84,99,150) (84,99,150)
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligarion - - 4,88,240 - 4,88,240
Balance as at 31 March, 2017 76,50,00,000 4,24,95,328 (3,70,43,561) 5,61,613 77,10,13,380
Profit for the year - - (3,08,67,867) (3,08,67,867)
Remeasurements of defmed benefit obligation - - 4,92,169 - 4,92,169
Dcforred tax adj. on interest on Preference shares - (1,46,14,750) - - (1,46,14,750)
Adjustments for the year - - - (3,75,840) (3.75,840)
Security premium on the issue of preference shares 26,55,00,000 - - - 26,55,00,000
Liquity component of preference shares - 1,37,15,248 - - 1,37,15,248
Balance as at 31 March, 2018 1,03,05,00,000 4,15,95,826 (6,74,19,259) 1,85,767 1,00,48,62,334

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of

Zaar Infraworld India Limited

g \/\/\'1\ Lﬁ wt € \"' -
N SURESH KRISHNAN

Dircctor
DIN: ()()()”1%
ANSHUL A. BANSAL

Chief Financtal Officer

%

SUNIL SETHY
Dircector
WIN: 00244104

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referved to in our report of even date.
For VARMA & VARMA

Chartered Accountants

RN 0045328

TR

K P SRINIVAS
Partner

M. No. 208520

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018



ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

1.

Corporate information:

The Consolidated Tnd AS financial statements of Zuan Infraworld India Limited ("the Company™) and its Subsidiary ("hereinafrer
collectively referred as the "Group™) and its associares are for the year ended 31 March 2018, The Company is domiciled in Tndia and is
mceorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Group's primary business is pre-dominanty into the
business of developing a residential cum commercial property intended for sale.

The consolidated financial statemients were approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of directors at the

mecting held on 2tst May, 2018,

Significant accounting policies:

(a.) i. Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention on the acerual basis except for certain financial
mstruments which are measured at fair values and in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under
Scetion 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amendments thereto
and the Guidance Note on Real Estare Transactions (For entities to whom Ind A8 is applicable) issued by The Tnstitute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT).

itfective from April 1, 2016, the Group has adopted the Tnd AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with
Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, with April 1, 2015 as the tansition date. Por the financial years
upto and including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has prepared its consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companics (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Tndian GAAD),

The consolidated financial statements are presented n Indian Rupees, except when otherwise indicated.

ii, Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures as at 31 March 2018, Control is achieved when the Group has power over the investee, is exposed, or has rights, to
variable rerurns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

Specifically, the Group controls an mnvestee if and only if the Group has:

- Power over the investee (Lo, existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)

- Hxposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

- The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar
circumstances. 1f a member of the Group uses accounting policics other than those adopred in the consolidated financial
statements for like ransactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member’s
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the Group’s accounting policies.

iti. Consolidation procedure :

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following the below mentioned procedures:

(1.) Subsidiary has been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by combining together the book values of the Tike items of assets,
Habilitics, income, expenses, and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiary, offsctting (chiminating) the carrying amount
of the parent’s investment in subsidiary and the parent’s portion of cquity of cach subsidiary and after climinating all significant

intra-group balances and intra-group transactions and also unrealized profits or losses.

2.y Interests in the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the \ssociates over which the Group has significant influence but not
control have been consolidated using Foquity method. Under the equity method of accounting , the investment in an associate is
mitally recognised ar cost and the carrying amount s increased or decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss

of the investee after the date of acquisition.

(3.} The difference of the cost o the Group of its investment in Subsidiaries over its proportionate share in the equity of the
investee Group as at the date of acquisition of stake is recognized in the finandal statements as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the
case may be. While in the case of Associates such Goodwill or Capital Reserve s adjusted 1o the carrying value of investments.

{(4) The intragroup assets and Habiliries, cquity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to ransactions between entides of the
Group (including profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed
assets) are climinated i full. Intragroup losses ndicating an impairment are recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
Pursuant to Ind AS12 on Tncome Taxes the temporary differences that arise from the cimination of profits and losses resulting

from intragroup transactions are recognised.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(5) Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive income (OC]) are ateribured to the equity holders of the Parent
\ ! 1 jutny

Company of the Group and 1o the non-controlling interests, even if this resulrs i the non-controlltng interests having a defiert

balance. However the minority interests has been restricted to zero on the transtion date 1o Aprid 1, 2015 using the exemption

provided by the Ind AS 101 and the accumulated losses attributable to the minorities 1 excess of their equity on the ransition

date, in the absenee of the contractual obligation on the minoriues, the same has been accounted for by the Parent Company.

(6) The financial starements of the group entiries used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same repornng date as that

of the Group t.e. year ended March 31, 2018,

List of Subsidiaries and Associates considered

for consolidation:

(A) Following Subsidiary has heen consolidated on line by line basis:

Name of the Group

Country of Share of Ownership

Share of Ownership

Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Zuari Infra Middle Bast Limired Dubai, UALL 100.00% 100.00%

The information relating to the subsidiary of Zuari Infra Middle East

Limited is given below

Name of the Group

Country of Share of Ownership

Share of Ownership

Incorporation Interest as at March 31, | Interest as at March 31,
2018 2017
Zuari Infraworld S]M Properties LLC
(Formerly known as S|A Efysinnr Properties ILLC) UAT 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Sharcholding includes 51% held by a nominee sharcholder as per the Sharcholders Agreement dated 18.08.2014. As per this

agreement Zuari Tnfra Middle Fast Limited has complete control over the management. Tlence, this Company has been

considered as a subsidiary with 100% interest and accordingly consolidated. The paid up share capital corresponding to the 51%

interest has been included under other current liabilitices.

(B) Following Investments in Associates have been consolidated usin

o Equity Method of Accounting:

Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at Interest as at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Timited India 25% 25%
Pranati Nikctan Private Limited Tndia 25% 25%
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25%

The information relating to the subsidiaries of

Brajbhumi Nirman Private Limited are given be

low:

Name of the Group Country of Share of Ownership Share of Ownership
Incorporation Interest as at March 31, | Interest as at March 31,
2017 2016
Rosewood Agencies Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Neobeam Agents Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Mayapur Commercial Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Nexus Vintrade Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Bahubali I'radecomm Privare Limired India 100.00% 100.00%
ITopeful Sales Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Divine Realdev Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Kushal Infraproperty Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Beate Agencies Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Suhana Properties Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%
Saker Manstions Private Limited India 100.00% 100.00%




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(b.) Use of Accounting Estimates
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformiry with Ind AS requires the management to miake estimatces,
judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the
reporied amounts of assers and labilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and Habilities at the date of the financial statements
and reporred amounts of revenues and expenses during the year. The application of accounting policies that require critical

accounting estimares involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of assumptions i these consolidated financial
starements have been disclosed in the ensuing Notes. Accounting estimates could change from year to year, Also actual results
could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates, Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidared financial statements in the year in

which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the consohidared financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions used by management are as below:

1. Useful lives of Tnvestment Property, Property Plant and Fquipment and Intangible Assets and assessment of impatrments.

it Iair value measurements of various financial assets and habilities and the resultant faiv values.

iit. Computation of percentage completion for projects in progress, project cost, revenue and saleable area esumares.

The measurement of project costs and revenue are affected by varieties of uncertainties that depend on outcome of future events.
The estimates often need revision as events accrue and uncertainties are resolved. Therefore the project cost and revenue may

increase or decrease from one reporting year to another.

(c.) (@) Property, plant and equipment and Depreciation

The Property, plant and cquipment of the Group are stated ar historical cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly arrributable cost of bringing the asset to its current
working condition for the intended use. Any trade discounts or rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase cost.

Recognition:

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment shall be recognised as an asset if, and only if:
(i.) it is probable that future cconomic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company; and
(i1.) the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Details about useful life of cach category of asscrs are as follows

Name of Assets Useful Lives

Office Lquipment 5 years

Plant & NMachinery 8 years

Furniture & Vixtures 10 years

Computer and servers 3and 6 years

Motor Vehicles 10 years

Leaschold Improvements Over the primary lease period ending on 31st March, 2025

Temporary structure 1 years

Depreciation is provided under the Straight Tine Method after retaining estimated residual value not exceeding 5% of the cost,
except for Lease hold Improvements. Depreciation on assets used for the project has been considered as part of construction and
development cost.

The residual values, uscful Tives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and cquipment are reviewed at cach financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if considered appropriate,

Upon adoption of Ind AS, the Group had clected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deermed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS ic., Tst April, 2015

(ii) Intangible Assets and Amortisation:

) Tntangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful Jives of intangible asscets are assessed as
. cither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized under the Straight Line Method over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there s an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finire useful life are reviewed atleast ac the end of each reporting
period. The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such
expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. Tnrangible asserts with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are
tested for impairment annually, cither individually or at the cash-gencrating unit level. ‘The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed

annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. 1f not, the change in uscful life from indefinite to

finite is made on a prospective basis.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind A8, the Group had clected to measure all it intangible assets ar the Previous GAAP carrying
amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS te., Tst April, 2015,




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(d.) Lecascs (other than land leases)

Operating Leases as a lessee:

Tease rentals are recognized as expense or income on a straight line basis with reference 1o lease terms and other considerations
exeept where:-

{4y Another systemartic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefie derived from the asset taken or given on

(1) The payments 1o the lessor are strucrured o inerease in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the Tessor’s

expected nflationary cost increases

(e.) Impairment of asscts

The Company assesses, at cach reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication

exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset s required, the Company estimates the asse’s recoverable amount.
3 te) * B

Recoverable amount 18 determined for an individual assct, unless the asset docs not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of asscts. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount,
the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. Tn assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions arc taken

into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

For asscts excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. 1f such indication exists, the Company cstimates the
asset’s or CGLUs recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change m the
assumptions used to determine the asser’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is
limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asser in prior years. Such
reversal s recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assct is carried ar a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal

is treated as a revaluation increas

(f.) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing cost includes nterest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs,
Borrowing costs that are dircetly attributable to the construction of development property are capitalized as part of the cost till
such time the property is ready for its intended sale. Al other borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur.

Borrowing costs during an extended period i which it suspends the activities necessary to prepare an assct for its intended use or
sale. Such costs are costs of holding partially completed assets and do not qualify for capiralisation. Towever, the Company does
not normally suspend capitalising borrowing costs during a period when it carries out substantial technical and administrative
work. The Company also does not suspend capitalising borrowing costs when a temporary delay considering the nature of industry

is a necessary part of the process of gerting an asset ready for its intended use or sale.

(g.) Foreign Currency Translation
The Company’s financial statements are prepared and presented in Tndian Rupees, which is also it's functional currency.
(i) Initial Recognition: Forcign currency transactions, if any, are recorded at exchange rare prevailing on the date of transaction/
realisation.
(i) Conversion / Reinstatement: Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing at the
reporting date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in a forcign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monctary items measured at fair value denominated in a foreign
cwrrency are, translated using the exchange cates that existed when the fair value was determined.
Gii) Dxchange Differences: Fxchange differences arising on the sertlement of monetary items or on reporting Company”s
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year, or reported in previous financial
statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year in which they artse
The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monctary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.c., translation differences on ttems whose fair value gain or loss is recognized
in other comprehensive income {OCT) or profit and loss are also recognized in OCT or profit and loss, respectively).

(h.) Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase including cost of land | costs of conversion and other costs including
4 > g

borrowing costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condidon.
Inventories {comprising Land under Development and Construction Work-in-Progress) are stated ar lower of cost and net
realizable value. Cost includes expenses, net of faxes recoverable, specifically attributable to construction and development of

propesty intended for sale. The allocation of common costs is based on the normal level of the activities




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(i.) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments
Contingent Liabilitics
A contingent Hability is a possible obligarion that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events bevond the control of the Company or a present obligation that s not
recognized because it i3 not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to sertle the obligation. A contingent habiliry
also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a Hability that cannot be recognized beeause it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company docs not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its extstence in the financial statements.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setde the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only
when the reimbursement is virrually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net
of any rexmbursement.

If the effect of the dme value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate thar reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

_ (j.) Revenue Recognition

» (i) Revenue is recognized in relation to the residentdal / Commercial units sold, 1o the extent ir is probable that the cconomic
benefits will flow to the Company demonstrated cither by way of an Agreement for Sale (AFFS) and when the buyer's investment is
adequate enough to demonstrate a commitment to pay. In accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Real Ilstate
Transactions (for entitics to whom Ind AS is applicable) 1ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the "TCAT")

that there 15 a rebuttable presumption that outcome of real estate project can be estimated reliably and revenue from sale of
residential propertices is recognised on the "percentage of completion method" only if the following conditions are satisfied :

- all critical approvals necessary for the commencement of the project have been obtained.

- the expendirure incurred on construction and development costs (excluding land cost) is not less than 25 % of the total estimated

construction and development costs;

- atleast 25 Yo of the saleable project area is secured by contracts/agreements with buyers; and

- ar least 10 % of the contracts/agreements value are realized at the reporting date i respect of such contracts/agreements

(i) Tncome in respect of service contracts which are in the nature of fees for specified periods are recognized proportionatcly oves
the specified period.

(i) Income in respect of service contracts which are based on the corresponding project costs/profits are recognized when actual
construction work commences and there are no significant uncertainties as to the underlying projects and the corresponding costs
are incurred or profits are carned by the customers.

(iv.) Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rates applicable.
(v.) Dividend is recognised as and when the right to receive payment is established by the reporting date.

(k.) Taxes onincome

Current income tax

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authoritics using own estimates in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current income tax assets and labilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authoritics. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised ourside profit or Joss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect o
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tay is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the rax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

set 15 realised or

Deferred tax assets and Habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the as
the Hability is scrtled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused rax credits and any unused
& ) > Y )

rax Toss

5. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
: deductible remporary differences, and the canry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

Deferred rax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss statement s recognised ¢ or loss fleither i other

comprehensive income or in equity).




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(I.) Retirement and other Employec Benefits
Provident Fund
Retirement benefit in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and the contributions are charged 1o the Profit
and Loss statement of the vear when the contributions to the respective funds are due. There are no other obligations other than

the contribution payable under the scheme,

Gratuity
Gratuity lability under the Payment of Gratuity et 1972, are defined benefit obligations and are provided for on the basis of
actuarial valuation on projected unit eredit method, made at the end of cach financial year. The gratuity Jabiliry is not funded.

Compensated Absences

Short term compensated absences are provided for based on cstimates by the Management considering the enttlements
ourstanding as at the reporting date. Tong term compensated absences are provided for based on acruarial valuation made at the
end of cach financial year. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit eredit method.

Remeasurements

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excuding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assers (excluding amounts included in net mterest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained carnings

through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss statement in subsequent

Net interest is caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit lability or asset.

(m.) Current and Non-current classification
All Asscts and Habilities have been classified as current or son-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other
criteria set out in Schedule 11T of the Companies Act, 2013, As the Company is engaged in developing a residental cum
commercial project, the normal operating cycle is based on the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash and cash equivalents. The group has ascertained its operating cycle as one year for the purpose of Current -

Noncurrent classification of assets and labilitics, which 1s considered appropriate,

(n.) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one catity and a financial iability or equity instrument of
another entity.

(1.) Financial assets

Initial recognition

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assct.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
- Debt mstruments at amortised cost

- Debt/ Fquity instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income

- Debt / Lquity instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument” is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a.) The assct is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows

h.) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPPT) on the principal amount outstanding,

After initial measurement, such financial asscts are subscquently measured at amortised cost using the cffective interest rate (RIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the IR, The FIR amortisation s included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applics o trade and other receivables.

Debt at FVTOCI
A ‘debtinstrument” is classified as ar the FVTOCT if both of the following criteria are met:

(a.) The objective of the business model iz achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asscrs, and

.) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

Debt insoruments incuded within the I'NTOCT category are measured indtially as well as at cach reporting date ar far value. rar
value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the company recognizes interest income,
impatrment Josses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the P&1L. On derecognition of the asset, comulative gain or loss
previously recognised 1in OCT 18 rechassitied from the cquity to P&LLL Tnrerest carned whilst holding FN'TOCT debr instrument s

reported as mterest income using the IR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVIPLL s a residual category for debr instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the eriteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCT s classified as at VAT,

Tn addition, the company may clect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or F'NTOCT eriteria, as
at 'VIPL. [Towever, such cection is allowed only if doing so reduces or ciminates a measurement or recognition Mconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt mstrument as at FVTPL

Debr instruments included within the FNTPLL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profit and
LLoss statement.

Equity Instruments at FVTP/FVTOCI

ANl equity investments in scope of Tnd AS 109 are measured at fair value. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make
an irrevocable clection to present in other comprehensive income subscquent changes in the fair value. The Companies makes
such clection on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on inidal recognition and is revocable.

Investments in equity share of subsidiary and associates are measured at cost of acquisition pursuant to Ind AS 109.

1f the Company decides to classify an cquity instrument as at FVTOCT, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no transfer of the amounts from OCI to Profit and Loss | on sale of investment.
However, the Company may transfer the camulative gain or loss within cquity.

Liquity instruments included within the P'VTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the Profic and

TLoss statement.

Derecognition

A financial assct (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial asscts) is primarily
derecognised {.e. removed from the balance sheet) when:

(a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

(b.) The company has gansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the recerved
cash flows in full without material delay o a third party under a ‘pass-through arrangement; and cither (2) the company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has ransferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an assct or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
cvaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, When it has ncither ransferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an associated
Hability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations thar the
company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets
In accordance with Ind AS 109, the company applics expected credit loss (1I3CL) model for measurement and recognition of

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credir risk exposure:

@) Pinancial asscts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt sccuritics, deposits, trade
recetvables and bank balances in current account.

b.) Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at F'N'TPL

The Company follows ‘simplificd approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on Trade recetvables thar do not contain
a significant financing component. The application of simplificd approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime 15CLs ar cach reporting date, right from its inirial
recognition. As registration of property and subsequent revenuce recognition is done only when company recerves the full amount
from the customer, The company does not expect any for credit loss on trade receivables in respect of sale of properties, which is

considered appropriate by the Management .

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the eredit risk since initial recognition. Tf eredit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL 1s
used to provide for impairment Joss. However, if credit risk has increased significandy, lifetime 1NCL s used. T, i a subsequent
period, eredit quality of the instrument improves such that there s no longer a significant increase in credit sisk since nitial

recognition, then the Company reverts to recognizing impairment Joss allowance based on 12-month BECL.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

Lifetime BCEL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible defaule events over the expecred life of a financial

instrument. ‘I'he 12-month 1CL s a portion of the liferime ECL which resules from defaule events thar are possible within

months after the reporting date.

G s the difference berween all contractual cash flows thar are due to the Company in accordance with the conrract and all the

cash flows that the Company expects to receive (e, all cash shortfalls), diseounted ar the original FIR. When estimating the cash

flows, the Company considers:

All contracrual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected Tife

of the financial nstrument. owever, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instument cannot be esumated reliably,

then the Company is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

(IL.) Financial liabilities

(i) Inital recognition and measurement

Financial habilitics arc classificd, at initial recognition, as financial Habilitics at fair value through profic or loss, Toans and

borrowings, payables, as appropriate. All financial Habilities are recognised minally at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net of direetly artributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including financial guarantee contracts

and dervative financial instruments.

(i1) Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial labilities depends on their dlassification, as described helow:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial labilities are classified as held for trading if they are

incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into

by the company rthat are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge reladonships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated

embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designared as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or los

:s on labilitics held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial Habilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the mitial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For labilitics designated as JVTPL, fair value aains/ losses

attributable to changes in own credit visk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subscquenty transferred to P&l

However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are

recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial Hability as at fair value through profit

and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subscquentdy measured ar amortised cost using the EIR

method. Gains and Josses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR

AMOLTSALION Process.

Amortised cost is calculated by aking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This catepory generally

applics to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it

incurs because the specified debror fails o make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt mstrument,

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a lability at fair value, adjusted for ransaction costs that are dircetdy

attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the Nability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance

determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumularive amortsation.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing

financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially differeat rerms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derccognition of the origimal liability and the

recognition of a new liabiliry. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss starement.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(0.) Earnings per Share

Basic carnings per share are caleulated by dividing the ner profir or Joss for the period avribuable to the cquity sharcholders (afrer

deducting atrributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear, For the purpose of
calculating diluted carnings per share, net profit or toss for the vear attributable to equity sharcholders and the weighted average
ey number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equiry shares.

(p.) Scgment Reporting Policies
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided o the chief operating decision
maker. Chief operating decision maker reviews the performance of the Group according to the natre of business which
predominantly comprises of devcopment of real estate projects | both residential and commercial.
The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting

financial statements of the Group as a whole.

(q.) Recent Accounting pronouncements
i. New Accounting standards adopted by the Group :
In March 2017, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules,
2017, notifying amendments to Ind AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows”. These amendments are in accordance with the recent
amendments made by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) to 1AS 7, ‘Statement of cash flows”. The amendments are
applicable to the Company from April 01, 2017,

Amendment to Ind AS 7 - Statement of Cash Flows:

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures about changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, mcluding
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). On inital application of the
amendment, entities are not required to provide comparative informanon for preceding periods.

il. New accounting standards not yet adopted:

In 28 March, 2018, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules,
2018 notified a new standard, amendments to existing standards and interpretations which are cffective for financial year
beginning after April 1, 2018, and have not been applied in preparing these standalone financial statements. New standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations that could have a potential impact on the financial statements of the Group are:

Notification of new revenue recognition standard Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers:
=
Ind AS 115 supersedes all existing revenue recognition requirements i Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts, Ind AS 18 Revenue
g £ | s
and related interpretations. According to the new standard, revenue is recognized to reflect the ransfer of promised goods or
services to a customer in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services. Ind AS 115 establishes a five step model that will apply to revenue carned from a contract with a customer (with
limited excepuons), regardless of the type of revenue transaction or the industry. FExtensive disclosures will be required, including
> Teg Y ) ! > g
disaggregation of total revenue; information about performance obligation; changes in contract asset and liability account balances
28 3 u > & ¥

between periods and key judgments and estimates

The standard allows for two methods of transition: the retrospective approach, under which the effect of adoption of this standard
is presented retrospectively to cach prior reporting period in accordance with Tnd AS 8, Accounting Policies, Changes m
Accounting Tistimares and Firrors (subject to few expedients) or the cumulative approach, where the cumulative effect of applying
the standard retrospectively is recognized at the date of initial application. The standard is effective for financial year beginning on
or after April 1, 2018. The Management is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard on the Group’s financial

starements.

Amendment to Ind AS 21- The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates:

Appendix B, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration to Ind AS 21 requires to record a foreign currency
transaction, on initial recognition in irts functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate
between the functional currency and the foreign currency (the exchange rate) at the date of the ransaction. Tt further states that

the date of the transaction is the date on which the transaction first qualifies for recognition in accordance with Ind AS Standards.

Accordingly, this appendix clarifies the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on inirial
= recognition of the refated asset, expense or income when an entity has recerved or paid advance consideration in a foreign

currency. The effect on adoption of this change on the financial statements is expected to be insignificant.
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR VHE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018,

CAmount m Rupuees, unfess otherwise stated)
4, Investments As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 34, 2017

4.1. Non-current
(1) Investments in equity shares (Unquoted)
Investments carried at Cost (fully paid)

In Associates (Unquoted)
{2 Brajbhunu Nirmaan Povate Limited
HHLO0,000 (2017:10,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach, wsued ar a premum of Re 179,40,

As at the beginning of the vear 7,21,98,184 7,20,99,823
Adjustment for unrcahised Profits - (9,00,352)
Adjustrment for share of profir/{oss) m Associates * (4,23470) 9,098,713
Adjusiment for Goodwill on Consolidaton 15,90,000,867 15,90,00,867
23,07,75,581 23,11,99,051
(b, Darshan Nirman Private Limited
12,500 (2017:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach]
As at the begmning of the year (28,701) (24,201)
Adjusunent for share of profit/ (loss) in Associates (11,354 {4,500y
Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation 36,108 36,108
(3,947) 7,407
(c.} Pranau Niketan Private Lomited
12,500 (2017:2,500) Equity Shares of Rs 10 cach]
As at the beginnmg of the year (29,524) (24774
Adjustment for share of profit/(loss) in Associates (4,490) (4.750)
Adjustment for Goodwill on Consolidation 36,477 36,477
2,464 6,954
23,07,74,097 23,12,13,411

© Net of Re.Nil (2017: Rs. 26,44,000/-) groups' share Income disclosed under IS adjusted to Reserves under Other Equity

(i1) Investments in preference shares (Unquoted)
Investments carried at fair value through Profit or Loss: (fully paid)
Beajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692

[5.00,060 shares of Rs 100 cach, fully paid, Date of Matunty 30 November, 2023

(1% Redeemable Non-Cumulative optionally convertible preference shares)

6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692

* As per the audited consolidated financial statement of the associate eonty the avestment in optionally convertible preference shares are been
considered as compound financial instrument. Accordingly, Rs.1,05,38,375/- Q017: Rs.1,05,38,375/-) was reported as equity component and the

balance as Liabdlity.

(iif) Investments in mutual funds (Unquoted)
Investments at fair value through Profit or Loss:

() 1CICT Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Serics (77-1473 Days Plan C) 6,57,92,500 5,94.33,000
15,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 25 May, 2019
(b.) ICICI Prudential Fixed Maturity plan Series (78-1130 Days Plan 1) 11,75,45,000 10,96,28,000
{10,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 25 Aprl, 2019} -
(c.) TCICT Prudential Fised Maturity plan Series (78-1156 Days Plan 'T) 5,84,05,500 5,45,13,000
(5,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 29 May, 2019}
(d.) SBI Debt Fund Series B-36 (1131 Days) 9,93,24,200 9,29,00,750
(8,500,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Matusity 06 May, 2019 -
(c.) SBI Debr Fund Series C-1 (1100 Days) 15,72,49,500
[8,500,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 26 June, 2020)
(£3 SBI Debt Fund Series B-17(1100 Days) * 12,54,93,000 11,71,47,000
[10,000,000 units at Rs 10 per unit, Date of Maturity 22 May, 2018]
(.} SBI Short Term Debt Fund * 35,58,39,086
{1,73,57,242.175 units at Rs 10 per unit]
97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750
1,27,38,37,575 73,02,49,853

< The Management intends to reinvest the proceeds on maturity, accordingy these investments are classified as Non-current.




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018,

{Amount i Rupees, unless otherwise stared)

4.2 Summary of Investment and their valuation (Also, refer Note 36) :

Investment Class Method of Valuation As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017
Unquoted cquity shares Cost 23.07,74,097 23,12,13411
Unquoted preference shares Discounted cash flows method? 6,54,14,692 0,54,14,092
Murtual funds Marketr observable fputs 97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750
1,27,38,37,575 73,02,49,853

¥ Based ou the raluation reporis issited by the independent raluer and relied upon by the anditors.

4.3. Tnvestments n mutual funds are held under lien with bank for stand by letter of credit (SBILC) facility from State Bank of India in favour of a
Bank m UALL on the basis of which tesm loan facilities will be availed by Zuari Infraworld Middle Past Limited, Dubai (WOS). The sanctioned Jimit
of the facility 13 Rs.176.77crores { AL 105 million) (2017: Rs.176.77crores ) for a tenor of 4 years and claim period of 2 months (Date of sanction :
23 March, 2015).All the mvestments are carried as non-current as they are expected to cither renewed / re-invested on their matarity.

4.4.Investment of funds in mutual funds will not meet the contractual cash flow test (e, SPPI test) as the contracrual cash flows (Lo dividends or
redemption amount represented by the NAV) will not just be solely interest and principal. Therefore, the same has been classified as Fair Valuce
through profit and loss (FVTPL)

4.5, Investments in Redeemable optionally convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares:

Company has made nvestment in 1% Redeemable optionally convertible Non-camulative Preference Shares of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited.
These investments n shares does nor satisfy contractual cash flow test as they are optionally convertible into equity shares and their dividends are
linked to profits camed. Accordingly, the Company has classified these investunents in shares as Fair value through profit and loss (FVIPL). For this
purposce fair valuation was carried by an independent valuer and the same has been relied upon by the auditors.

4.6. Investments in Mutual Funds brought and sold during the year are given below:

Descriptions For the year ended March 31, 2018 For the year ended March 31, 2017

Purchase Cost  Sale Proceeds Gain/Income] Purchase Cost Sale Proceeds Gain/Income
1CTCT Prudennal Fixed Matarity Plan - - - 12,20,24,160 12,30,31,010 10,006,850
SBI Dbt Funds - B - 79,82,620 81,00,837 1,18,217
TCTCT Prudennal (ag) Mutal Fuand 3,95,00,000 3,96,36,902 1,36,902 - - ' -
IDFC-Money Mgr. Fd. -Treasury Plan 50,00,000 50,18,225 18,225 - -
L& Liguid Iund 25,00,000 25,22,656 22,656 - - -
L.&T Ultra Short Term Fund 5,71,32,261 5,73,99,047 2,66,786 - - -
SBI Mg Insta Cash lfund (Daily Div) 13,00,00,000 13,04,63,835 4,63,835 - - -

23,41,32,261 23,50,40,665 9,08,404 13,00,06,780 13,11,31,847 11,25,067

4.7. No impairment m the value of the carrying value of the investment is considered necessary as the diminution in the net asset is not of a

permanent nature considering the future business prospects of the Projects, which is considered appropriate by the Management.

5. Loans As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

5.1. Non - Current

Loan to employcees (amortised cost) - 3,74,154
- 3,74,154

5.2. Current
Advances to Employcees {carried at cost) 50,02,346 61,006,362
50,02,346 61,06,362

50,02,346 64,80,516
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6. Other financial assets As at As at
March 31,2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

6.1, Non-current

Seeurity deposirs (carried at amortised cost) 26,69,046 24,777,035
Sceurry deposits (carried at cost)? 30,02,955 240,200
56,72,001 27,17,235

6.2. Current

Sceurity deposits - Current (Carried at cost)® 24,711,410 36,063,923
Ovther Bank deposits (DSRA) 49,07,610 -
Interest acerued and due - Others (refer note 6.3, below) 33,71,513 18,87,939
Accraed Service Tncome (refer note 6.4, below) 1,35,000 -
Lixpenses Recoverable (refer note 6.5, below) 1,68,35,919 97,36,809
Unbilled Revenue 1,80,72,074 24.55,99,582
4,57,93,533 26,08,88,254

* Fully recovevable and hence no provision is considered necessar.

6.3 Interest accrued on mobilization advances paid to one of the sub-contractors ix expected 10 be recovered in full and hence provision is not

considered ar this stage, which 15 considered appropriare by the Management.

6.4 Represents service income accrued and not billed to related parties;

Zaart Global Limited, India - Commission towards marketing services 1,35,000 -

6.5 Includes expenses recoverable from related parties;
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, India 1,57,32,604 86,01,275

7. Other Assets As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

7.1. Non-Current

Advances recoverable in cash or kind {refer note 7.3 & 7.4 below) 8,50,16,721 9,17,74,007
Karnataka VAT - refund receivable 32,01,319 26,25,072
Service tax - refund receivable 10,34,805 -
Less: Provision towards service tax refund (10,34,805) -
Advance for Investment (refer note 7.8 below) 37,26,45,000 18,53,77,500
Prepaid lease (Seeurity deposit paid) 1,94,143 3,87,225
46,10,57,183 28,01,63,804

7.2, Current

Advances recoverable i cash or kind

Credit of Input VAT 576,304 1,01,86,753
CENVAT Credit - 3,34,21,148

GST Credit (Refer Note 7.5. below) 4,47,94,546 -
Advance to vendors (Refer Note 7.6. below) 24,18,55,481 24,39,39.624

Other Recetvables 69,87,004 -
Prepaid expenses (Refer Note 7.7 below) 1,19,81,228 1,04,80,350
Prepaid lease-current (Sceurity deposit paid) 1,93,083 1,93,083
30,63,87,736 29,82,20,958

7.3. Includes recoverable Advances to a Sub-contractor aggregating to Rs 2,10,56,165/- (2017: Rs 2,78,13,451/-) in respect of which the sub-
contractor vendor has furnished bank guarantee fo the extent of Rs 2,37,12,884/- (2017: Rs 2,37,12,884/-) which was valid upto 31 December, 2017

and the same is pending for renewal.

7.4. Under the Development Management Agreement, the Agency is entitded to a percentage of income caleulated in the manner specified under the
agreement. The Company has made advance payments aggregating to Rs. 6,39,60,556 as at 31 March, 2018 (2017: Rs. 6,39,60,556/-). The amount will
be adjusted in the vear when the agency becomes entitled 1o share of income as per the agreement or recovered. The Management expects to
adjust/recover the same in full and hence is of the view that no adjustment is necessary ar this stage.
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7.5. GS'T eredits carried in books include input tax credit aggregating ro Re49,67,270/- pertaining to advance payments made to vendors and cligible
tax credits on taxes paid under reverse charge mechanism, which be will be claimed i the subsequent pertod when the company s chigible to clum
such credit as per the Act. The Management of the company expuers to realise/ adjust these eredies i full.

7.6. Tncludes recoverable advances paid to a sub-contractor aggregaring to Rs 22,46,48,824/-(2017: Ry 22.46,47,417/- 5. The Management is in
negotiarion with party for its recovery and s confident hat this advance will be ultmarely fully recovered. Hence i the view of the Management no
provision 1s considered necessary at this stage.

7.7. Includes Rs.21,77,749/- (2017: R2.94,56,354/-) on account of brokerage & sales commission paid to an agency for services, on gross sale
consideration recetvable from customers

\s per the agreement, in the event of non-completion of sale transaction, such commission is refundable by
the agency. The commission paid s charged to the Profit & Loss Saatement as and when revenue is recognized.

7.8, This represents advance amount paid by Zuari Infraworld SIM Elysium Properties LLC (formerly known as 5]M Idystum Properties 1LY to a
party to joint venture for a 50% sharcholding in a company (as per agreement) owning a plot of land valued at AKD 140 million on which the project
is under development. This amount will be adjusted against future disuibutable profit on the completion of the project.

8. Inventories As at As at
(valued at lower of cost or net realizable value) March 31,2018  March 31, 2017
Work-In-Progress (includes cost of Land , Borrowing Cost and Project Construction 2,92,03,16,979 2,18,34,73,943

and Development Cost)

2,92,03,16,979  2,18,34,73,943

Also refer note 38 for further disclosure on project.

8.1 Includes Rs. 23,96,31,787/- (2017: Rs. 21,56,74,893/-) being cost incurred towards project in Goa managed by M/s. Zuari Global Limited which
is pending exceution.

8.2, The Management has reviewed the carrying value of its project work-in-progress by asscssing the net realisable value of the project which is
determined by forecasting sales rates, expected sale prices and estimated costs to complete (including escalations and cost overrun). This review by the
management did not result any Joss and thus no adjustments/ provisions to the carrying value of project work-in-progress s considered necessary by
the Management.

9. Trade receivables As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered Good

Current

Trade receivables - Associate 4,04,01,900 4.04,01,900
Trade receivables - Holding 65,49,021 -
Trade reccivables - others 8,81,980 -
Project receivables - from sale of flats/villas (refer note 9.5, below) 13,90,03,258 -
Total Trade Receivables 18,68,36,159 4,04,01,900

9.1. Realisations against the above receivables are appropriated on Firse-Tn-Firse-Oue (FT1FO) basts.
9.2. Trade receivables are non-interest beating payable as per the terms of sale.

9.3. Since, the Management of the Company expects full realisation of these receivables, no allowance towards non recovery s considered necessary
3 &4 s k B B
by the Management at this stage, as the possession and title of the property 1s also not transterred to these customers,

9.4. No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any

trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies respectively in which any dircctor is a parter, a director or a member.

9.5. Receivables in respect of the completed projects against which demand notes are raised and pending exceution of sale deed are reported as trade
recervables.

9.6. The trade and project receivables are hypothecated as sccurity for borrowings. (Refer Note 13 for details)

10. Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Cash on hand 45,267 -

Balances held in banks i current account 4,74,23,722 246,48,218

4,74,68,990 2,46,48,218

10.1. Includes Rs.1,46,607/- balance in current accounts with a bank and are as per the staremeny sobtatned from banks. Also mcludes

unconfirmed bank balance of R8.19,35,802/- in respecr of itz subsidiary.
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11. Share capital As at As at
March 31,2018 March 31, 2017

111 (a) Authorised
50,000,000 (2017 : 50,000,000) Fquity Shares of Rs. 10 cach 50,00,00,000 50,00.00,000
15,000,000 (2017 : 15,000,000) Preference Shares of Rs. 10 cach 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
65,00,00,000 65,00,00,0600

(b.) Issued, subscribed & paid up
4,65,50,000 (2017: 4,65,50,000) 1iquity Shares of Rs 10 cach 46,55,00,000 46,55,00,000
1,14,50,000 2017 = 85,00,000) Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares 11,45,00,000 8,50,00,000
of Rs 10 cach issued at premium of Rs. 90 cach. (Also, refer note 13.7.)

58,00,00,000 55,05,00,000

(c.) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
At the beginnmyg of the year (of Rs 10 cach) 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000
Issued during the vear (of Rs 10 cach) - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000 4,65,50,000 46,55,00,000

(d.) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company as at March 31, 2018

Name of the Sharcholder As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

No's. % holding No's. % holding
Zuari Global Limited, 1 Tolding Company 4,65,50,000 100% 46550000 100.00%

(Including 10,000 cquity shares jointly held)

Note: The above disclosed information as per the records/ registers including Members register maintained by the Company as at the year end.

(e.) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:
(i) The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Fach holder of equity shares is entitled to

one vote per share.

(i1) The company has not issued any securities convertible into cquit_v/prcfcrcncc shares.

(iti) for the period of five years immediately preceding the date as at which the Balance Sheet is prepared, there were:
No shares were allotted as fully paid up pursuant to a contract without payment being recetved in cash.
No shares were allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares.
No shares were bought back.

(iv) There were no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment.

(1v) There were no calls unpaid or forfeited shares.
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12. Other equity

As at

March 31, 2018

As at

March 31, 2017

12.1  Deemed equity on fair-value adjustment to Non-convertible cumulative redeemable preference Shares:

At the beginning of the year

4,24,95,328

1,24,95,328

Fequity component of redeemable Preference Shares tssued during the year 1,37.15,248 -
Ady. for deferred tax recognised on the interest on redeemable Preference shares (1,46,14,750) -
4,15,95,826 4,24,95,328
Also refer note 13.7 for detatled disclosure on preference shares.
12.2  Security Premium Account:
(On issue af Non-convertible cumunlative redeemable preference shares)
As at the beginning of the year 76,50,00,000 76,50,00,000
Add: Security premium received during the year 26,55,00,000 -
As at the end of the year 1,03,05,060,000 76,50,00,000
12.3 Balance in profit & Loss Statement
As at the beginning of the year. (3,70,43,561} (1,36,95,500)
Add: Profit for the Year (3,08,67,867) (2.38,36,302)
Add: Re-mcasurements gain on defined benehit plans, which will not reclassified to profit or loss? 4,92,169 4,88,240
Net deficits in the profit and loss statement (6,74,19,259) (3,70,43,561)
12.4 Foreign currency translation reserve
As at the beginning of the year. 5,61,613 90,60,769
Fixchange differences on translating the financial statements of foreign subsidiary (3,75,846) (84,99,156)
1,85,767 5,61,613
1,00,48,62,334 77,10,13,380
*The Remeasurements gains in respect of employee benefits included in Note 12.3 above are as under;
As at the beginning of the year. i 9,24,294 4,36,054
Remeasurements gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans 6,65,093 7,29,403
Income tax effect on above (1,72,924) (2,41,163)
Balance carried forward to next year 14,16,463 9,24,294
13. Borrowings As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

13.1  Long-term borrowings:
Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks:
Federal Bank Limited (refer note 13.3. below)
Less: Current Maturites {refer note 15.2)
State Bank of India, Dubai (refer note 13.8)

Unsecured Loans

Inter-Corporate Deposits from  {refer note 13.6. below)
Zuari Global Limited (carried at cost)

Adventz inance Private Limited {caried at cost)

Less: Current Marurities {refer note 15.2)

Liability component of compound financial instrument

Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares

1,24.88,63,294  1,06,48,63,295
(8,33,33,333) -
16,82,67,996 .
1,63,37,97,957  1,06,48,63,295
22,08,00,000 12,48,00,000
y 20,00,00,000
22,08,00,000)  (28,48,00,000)
. 4,00,00,000
8,14,75,750 5.61,54,238
1,71,52,73,707  1,16,10,17,533
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13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

Short -term borrowings:
Secured Loans
Term Loans from banks:

1C1CT Bank Limited (refer note 13.5. below) 15.00,00,000

Real srate loan from National bank of Fujairah {refer note 13.9. below) 70.48,31,400 70,12,56,600
Short-term loan from National bank of Fujairah (refer note 13.10. below) 2.66,17 500 -
Vehicle Loan 1,53,77,231 1,07,50,483
Orther Loans (refer note 13,120 below) 10,64,70,000 -

1,00,32,96,131 71,20,07,083

Unsecured Loans
Inter-Corporate Deposits from -
Adventz Finance Private Limited (carried at cost) (refer note 13.6. below) 20,00,00,000 -

Other unsecured foans (refer note 13.11 below) 14,85,83,481 -
34,85,83,481 -

1,35,18,79,612 71,20,07,083

Federal Bank (Term Loan)

(a.) Term loan facility of Rs. 150 Crores imncluding overdraft facility of Rs. 5 Crores as a sublimic of the overall mits, is secured by
cquitable mortgage on the Land and Building to be constructed under project name "Zuari Garden City " in arca admeasuring to 50
Acres and 35 Guntas, Project receivables including all insurance and further secured by Corporate Guarantee issucd by Zuari Global
Limited, the Holding Company. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility, which are in ordinary
course of business,

(b.) Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Principal No. of Instaliments Interest Rate Outstanding Outstanding
Amount Instalments Loan
1) Term Loan for Project 1,24,88,63,294 36 liqual NMonthly 12 % haked to 1 36 1,24,88,63,294
Tastalments Year MCLR

Draw down to the extent of Rs.1,24,88,63,294 (excluding overdraft facility) and repavable after 24 months moratortum from the
{ £ ) Pay
date of initial disbursement Le, January, 2017)
(i) Overdraft Facility 5,00,00,000 N.A. 12% linked to 1 NUA. -

(sub-hmir of the overall sanctioned imir) Year MCLR

(¢.) There are no continuing default in repayment of Principal or Interest as at the year end.

HDFC Bank (Term Loan)
(a) Short-term unsccured loan facility for Rs.7,00,00,000/- to meet working capital requirements of the Company. This was availed
and repaid during the year.

() Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Principal  No. of Instalments Outstanding Interest Rate Outstanding
Amount Instalments Loan
Short-term loan 7,00,00,000 Rs.3.5 Crores - 150 days of dravwdown NA 12% calculated _
Rs.3.5 Croves - 180 days of drawdown on 365 days basis.

ICICI Bank (Term Loan)

{a.) Short-term loan facility for Rs.15,00,00,000/- to meet working capital requirements of the Company. The facility is secured by the
exclusive charge over the Trade Receivables (other than project receivables) of the Company and Lquitable Mortgage over the Land at
Vrindavan, Uttar Pradesh owned by Brajbhumi Nirman Private Limited ("BNPL") | an assodiate entty. Jfurther, irrevocable and
unconditional Corporate Guarantee from BNPL. There are other conditions and financial covenants attached to this bank facility,
which are in ordinary course of business.

) Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Principal No. of Instalments Interest Rate Outstanding Outstanding
Amount Instalments Loan
Short-term loan 15,00,00,000  Repayable within 180 days of drawdown.  MCLR Plus spread NA 15,00,00,000
(Drawdown: 28th March 2018) of 1.25%6 (9.2% )
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13.6

13.7

Inter-Corporate Deposits (Unsecured)
(a.) Zuari Global Limited, Holding Company
(1) These are unsecured loan from Zuard Global Limited, Holding Company to mect the working capital needs of the Company,

(1) Terms of Repayment:

Particulars Outstanding  Loans during the Repaid Outstanding Rate of Interest Due Date of
01 April, 2017 Year 31 March, 2018 Repayment
Term Loan (1-4) §,48,00,000 - 1,15,00,000 7,33,00,000 8% 30-06-2018
Term 1oan-5 4,00,00,000 - - 4,00,00,000 8%% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-6 - 15,00,000 - 15,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-7 - 1,30,00,000 - 1,30,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-8 - 15,00,000 - 15,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-9 - 8,000,000 8,00,000 - 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-10 - 25,00,000 25,00,000 - 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-11 - 50,00,000 - 50,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-12 - 15,00,000 - 15,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-13 - 10,00,000 - 10,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-14 - 40,00,000 - 40,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-15 - 3,50,00,000 - 3,50,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-16 - 3,50,00,000 - 3,50,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-17 - 10,00,000 - 10,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
Term Loan-18 - 90,00,000 - 90,00,000 12% 29-09-2018
12,48,00,0060 11,08,00,000 1,48,00,000 22,08,00,000

(b.) Adventz Finance Private Limited
Unsecured Loan of Rs 20,00,00,000 /- at a interest rate of 14% p.a. is due on 30th june 2018. (2017: Rs. 20,00,00,000 /- at interest

rate of 14% per annum)

Note: The borvowings from banks and others are carvied ar their cost with interest being averied on the monthly basis . In the opinon of the Management had
the sane been amortised wsing the EIR the effect on these financial statements wonld be insionificant.

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

(a.) Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding at the beginning and end of the reporting year (In Numbers)
Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at As at As at
premium Rs 90 per share 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
At the beginning of the year 85,00,000 85,00,000
Issued during the year 29,50,000 -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 85,00,000
(b.) Shares holding more than 5% as at the beginning and end of the reporting year

Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017
Shares of Rs 10 each, issued at premium Rs 90 per share. In No's In % In No's In %

Mr. Sarop Kumar Poddar 85,00,000 74% 85,00,000 100%
Texmaco lnfrastructure & Holdings Limited 29,50,000 26% - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,14,50,000 100% 85,00,000 100%

(c) Terms / Rights attached to Non-Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares:

The Company has only one class of non-convertible preference share having a par value of Rs 10 per share, carrying coupon rate of
8.5% per annum which are cumulative in nature and redeemable on 31st March 2020 (70,00,000 Shares), 31st March 2021 (15,00,000
Shares) and 31st March 2022 (29,50,000 Shares) respectively. Lach holder of preference shares 1s entitled to one vote per share on
resolutions placed before the company, which directly affect the rights attached to the preference share. These shares are redeemable
at a price band of Rs 125 - Rs 150 per preference share.

(d) Pursuant to Schedule 11 of the Companies Act {"the Act™), for companies whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance
of the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Indian Accounting Standard 32 - Disclosure of Fmancial
Instruments, Non-convertible redeemable preference shares which are settled in cash needs to be classified as ‘financial Hability' and
not 'equity. Accordingly company has computed the fair value of these preference shares considering the effective mrerest rate (HIR)
at 14% and the portion computed as Borrowing” amounting to Rs.8,14,75,750/-(2017:Rs. 5,61,54,238/-) has been classified under
ong-term Borrowings' and the portion computed as the deemed equity amounting to Rs.5,62,10,576/- (2017: Rs. 4,24,95,328) has

been reported under 'Other Fquity'.
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With respeet 1o premium reecived on dssue as well as the additonal premium payable on vedemption of preference shares no
adjustments/ disclosures has been carried out as contemplated in Ind- 38 32 and Ind-AS 109 read with Schedule 1T of the Act, since
such classification of the securites premium account’ into borrowings' or 'other cquity’ will be inconsistent with the provisions of
sceton 52 of dhe Aet which stpulates the manner in which the securities premium account can be urlised. Also the addinonal
premium payable on the redemption has not been recognised in the absence of the accumulated profits since recognition of such a
hiability will be violatve of section 55 of the Act.

Considering above, the Company has been legally advised that no further recognition or adjustments to the premium amounts arce
required in view of the specific provisions of contained in section 52 and 55 of the Act. Accordmgly No adjustments are made as
required under Tnd-AS 32 and Tnd- AS 109 read with Schedule 1T of the Act

13.8  This represent loan amount drawn by Yuari Tnfra Middle FHast Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary out of total sanctioned limit of AR
165 million (USD 44.92 million) by State Bank of India, DIFC Dubai, U.ALL for residential real estate development project being
undertaken by the subsidiary company. The loan amount is repayable before 31 March 2021.The term loan is secured against
irrevocable and unconditional standby letter of comfort of USID 28,580,000 issucd by CAG Mumbai (Part of which has been given to
National Bank of Hujairah) by CAG Mumbai and corporate guarantee of Zuari Global Ltd to the extent of USD 16,340,000 In
addition, there are various conditions and financial covenants artached to the bank facility, which are in the normal course of business.

13.9  This represents term loan of AR 39,720,000 (previous year ARDD 39.720,000) taken by Zuari Infra Middle Fast Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary from National Bank of Pujairah for residential real estate development project being undertaken by the subsidiary
company. The loan amount is availed for one year and rolled over quarterly for a maximum tenor of four years. The term loan is
sceured against irrevocable and unconditional standby letters of credit of AL 41,900,000 issued by State Bank of India in favour of
National Bank of Fujairah. In addition, there are various conditions and financial covenants attached to the bank facility, which are in
the normal course of business.

13.10 This represents unsceured short term loan taken from National Bank of Fujairah for residential real estate development project being
undertaken by the subsidiary company. The loan amount is repaid back in April 2018,

13.11  This represents 0 to 12% per annum interest bearing and unsecured loans taken by Vuari Infraworld S)M Blystum Properties LLC, a
step down subsidiary which is repayable within a period of 2 years.

13,12 This represent secured and 12% per annum interest bearing loan availed by Yuarni Infraworld SJM Elysium Properties LLC, a step
down subsidiary from the unrclated party which is repayable within period of 2 year. This loan is secured against development

14. Trade payables As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

141 Non-Current
Retention Money - non current (carried at cost) - refer note 14.4 below 1,74,08,573 3,97,13,676
Duc to others {carried at cost) - refer note 14.4 below 25,48,074 -

1,99,56,647 3,97,13,676

14.2  Current
Retenton Money - current {carried at cost) 1,45,98,246 1,00,03,904
Dues to Related Parties {carried at cost) - refer note 14.3. & 14.4 below 36,92,844 1,62,90,366
Dues to others (carried at cost) 10,28,74,642 15,52 44,225

12,11,65,732 18,15,38,495

14.3  Due to Related Parties comprises of due to;

Simon Tndia Limired 36,92,844 36,92,844
Zuari Investments Limited - 14,84,500
Zuart Global Limited - 1,11,13,022

36,92,844 1,62,90,366

14.4  Includes retention money Rs.1,42,78,082/- (2017: Rs. 2,75,39,698/-) and other dues Rs. 25,48,074/- (Rs.2548,074/-) to once of the
sub contractors in respect of which the Management is in negotiation with party for full and the final serdement, pending which it is
reported as Non-current which is considered appropriate by the Management.

14,5 Based on the informartion available with the Company, none of the vendors / service providers have identified themselves to be

classified as Micro & Small enterprises uader the Micro, Small and Medium Tnter

s Development Acr, 2006, Accordingly, no

disclosures are made n this regard.
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15. Other Financial Liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

15.1  Non-Current
Other financial Habilitics (carried at amortised cost)

Rent Deposit 12,77,008 -

Pavables for capital purchases 5,97,89,364

Deferred Rental on securiry deposits (fair value adjustment) - Non-current 13,24,003 -
6,23,90,435 -

15.2 Current
Other financial liabilities (carried at cost)

Current maturity of long term loans {refer note 13) 30,41,33,333 28,48,00,000
Interest accrued and due on borrowings ¥ - 2,06,33,901
Interest aceruals on loans 70,91,204 28,99,339
Due to employees 68,42,472 58,34,832
Due to Parent Company 13,48,531 -
Due to refated parties (refer note 15.3 below) 20,09,121 9,59,560
Due to others 84,696 -
Others:

Defersed Rental on security deposits (fair value adjustment)-Current 237,404 -

32,17,46,821 31,51,27,633

* The Management is of the view that the scttlement / service of interest debited by the bank on the day subscequent to such debit is

not a default.

15.3 Due to related parties comprises of dues to;

Zaart Global Limited 2,85,625 -
M. Alok Banerjee 12,39,782 7,37,601
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal 4,00,867 1,29,037
Mr. € G Ramegowda 82,847 92,922
20,09,121 9,59,560
16. Provisions As at As at

March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

16.1  Non-Current

Provision for gratuity obligation 33,32,168 28,19,725
Provision for compensated absences 0,16,764 14,72,489
39,48,932 42,92,214

16.2 Current

Provision for gratuity obligation 3,28,819 1,82,650

Provision for compensated absences 3,72,691 2,776,263

Staff end of service benefits 203,15,743 -
27,17,253 4,58,913

Also, refer note 35 for detatled disclosures on employee benefit plans.
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17. Deferred tax liability (net)

As at
March 31, 2018

As at
March 31, 2017

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds
Interest on preference shares

Unwinding of sccurity deposit reccived

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Unwinding of security deposit paid

Interest acerued on preference shares (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS)
Difference berween accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible asscts
Tuming differences on benefir obligations

Unrealised Profit on DMC fees

Others

MAT Enutlement

Unused Tax Losses

Less: Not recognised m books of account

Also, refer note 27 for other tax related disclosuares.

20214470 1,07,17,205
1,46,14,750 -
24,556 -
3,48,53,775 1,07,17,205
11,369 14,103
60,28 445 45,12,956
17,98,688 22.90,965
12,09,115 -
76,478 76,478
2,69,049 -
41,80,513 75,95,063
3,09,53,972 -
(3.09,53,972) -
1,35,73,657 1,44,89,565
2,12,80,118 (37,72,360)

17.3. The Company offsets tax asscts and habilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to sct-off current tax assets and current tax
Habilities and the deferred tax assers and deferred rax labilites relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

17.4. Since the management expects that the interest on Non convertible redeemable Preference shares will not be allowed as a deduction, the
deferred tax impact on the same has been recognised in Other Fquity.

18. Other current liabilities As at As at
March 31, 2018  March 31, 2017

Statutory dues 73,067,488 73,86,370
Advances from Customers 19.66,90,945 22.04,32729
Others 27,14,985 27,01,215
20,67,73,417 23,05,20,314

18.1. Advances reccived represents receipts from buyers in respect of the projects which are under progress and also includes also includes

amounts refundable aggregating to Rs.5,00,000/- in respeet of cancelled flats/villas.
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19. Revenue from operations

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Sale of fars & villas

Development management fees
8

3,62,27 456
3,01,00,851

11,78,34,366
79,45,420

6,63,28,337

12,57,79,786

20. Other income

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Interest Income on
Deposits with Bank
Income tax refund

Others

Rent from sub-lease { net of directhy attributable expenses Rs, 34,79,512/-)

Dividend from Mutual funds

Gains from redemption of Mutoal FFund

Gain on fair value adjustments to financial assets through Profit and loss

Security deposit

Unwinding of financial liability, sceurity deposit from sub lease

Miscellancous income

81,514 227,854
573,824 .
47,114 24 01,415
3,62,692 .
4,63,836 .
4,44,568 11.25,067
4,85,63,201 172,23 241
1,92,010 1,78,163
2,37,464 .
752518 20,57,992
5,17,18,740 5,32,13,732

21. Project construction and development expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Architect Fees 13,12,833 5,56,13,250
Legal & Consultancy Iee 12,01,46,262 5,55,22,119
Depreciation on assets - Projects 6,360,170 8,09,194
Project Approval cost 3,03,300 -
Land Development 17,82,315 6,70,105
Civil Work 2,83,38,802 11,44,29.053
Landscape Expenses 39,605,357 44,14,999
Site Office [ixpensces 48,80,792 38,27,795
Site Seeurity Expenses 14,606 60,94,007
Project Staff Costs 10,13,35,687 7,99,13,791
Contribution to Provident & Other funds 18,02,507 19,36,287
Property Tax 45,80,296 14,88,908
Infrastructure Expenses 24,13,62,131 2,94,38,101
Miscellaneous project Fxpenses 50,12,469 2,95,49 561
Foreign exchange translations differences to inventories 90,12,565 (98,36,946)
Sub Total 52,44,86,092 37,38,70,223
Add: Borrowing cost incurred during the year 27,97,44,542 20,00,62,228
Less: Balance no longer required (2,21,00,000) -
78,21,30,634 57,39,32,451

22. Changes in inventories

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Construction Work-in- progress

Inventory at the beginning of the year

Add: Construction Cost incurred during the year
Less: Charged off to profit and loss during the year
Inventory at the end of the year

Total (Increase) / Decrease

2,18,34,73,042 1,72,24,99,023

78,21,30,634 57,39,32,451
(4,52,87,597) (11,29,57,531)
2,92,03,16,979 2,18.34,73,943
(46,09,74,920)

(73,68,43,037)
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23. Emplovee benefit expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

1,75.32,454 26,49 856
8.65,397 583717
$.87.990 9.25.826

61,908,011 311,812

2,54,83,853 44,71,210

24. Other expenses

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended M

Rent

Travel and conveyance

Legal and professional fees
Communication and internet charges
Office Fxpenses

Repairs and maintenance

Auditors remuneration

Recruitment expenses

Advertising and publicity expense
Rates and taxes

Commission & Brokerage

Security Iixpenses

Ixchange Loss

Insurance

Aiscellancous expenses

Provision for service tax refund receivable
Balances written-off

Loss on disposal of Assct

24.1. Auditors' Remuneration includes
Statutory audit fees

Audit fees to the Auditors of Subsidiary
Tax Audit Jees

Certification fees

Out of pocket expenses

90,89,884 32,44,060
45,00,283 57,36,012
69,70,417 2953416
23,74,199 6,89,055
23,01,806 21,56,930
36,05,755 4,24.404
10,80,369 9,66,894

561,262 1,74.285
43,22.707 48,56,327
16,75,556 33,37,870
37,23.555 63,32,661
13,23,240 28,58,496
16,63,935 .

2,09.157 -
21,39,251 8,16912
10,34,805 -

1,11 381 .

255,871 10,850

4,69,52,433 3,45,58,172

5,00,000 5,00,000

430,257 3,19,314

75,000 75,000
50,000 50,000
25112 22,580
10,80,369 9,66,894

25. Finance costs

For the year ended
March 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Interest cXpensce:
Interest on borrowings
Other borrowing cost

Interest on delayed payment of Income tax

Interest on delayed payment of Tax deducted at Source

Fair value adjustment initial recognition of security deposits

Fatr value adjustment to Preference Shares

Less: Transfer to Project Construction and Development expenses

26,35,25,880 21,94.23 555
2,14,89,165 1,80,26,652
1,43,064 -
4594 .
1,43,018 -
95.36,759 68,79,601
29.48,42,480 24,43,29 808
27.97.44,542 20,00,62,228
1,50,97,938 4,42,67,580

25.1. Capitalisation of the Borrowing cost is not required to be suspended when substantial technical and administrative work is carried out

or when there is a temporary delay which is a necessary part of the process of getting an assct ready for sale. The Management is of the view

that the sfow progress of various real cstate projects are temporary in nature considering the nature of industry and the cconomic conditions

prevailing in the industry. Accordingly, capitalisation (transfer to inventory) of intere

-costids pot suspended during the year.
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26. Depreciation and amortization expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Deprecation of tangible assets 4292250 14,06,115
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,94,669 286,835
Less: Depreciation on leasehold improvements attributable to sub-lease (3,72,005) -
income netted off against sublease income
43,14,914 16,92,950
27. Income Tax For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income tax expense 6,00,000 28,87,707
Income tax of earlier year 4,74,091 -
Deferred tax chatge/(credit) 1,02,64,805 29,84,134
Total 1,13,38,896 58,71,840

27.1 Income tax expense for the year reconciled to the accounting profit

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Profit before tax (1,90,89,657) (1,89,53,925)
Income tax expense calculated at 26% (2017 : 30.90%) (49,63,311) (58,56,763)
Adjustiments for:
Gain on fair value adjustments to preference shates - (32,38,935)
Expenses not considered for rax purposes. 1,15,169 337,563
Gain on fair value adjustments to Mutual funds taxable at differential rare (31,29,168) (32,54.540)
Interest portion fair value adjustment to preference shares issued 9,064,069 (1,48,800)
Other adjustments (11,35,149) (18,652)
Tax effect on unused tax losses not recognised 1,49,98,645 47,67,590
Tax expenses of eatlier year debited to profit and loss 4,74,091 -
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) of earlier year debited to profit and loss 40,14,550 -
1,13,38,896 (74,12,542)
27.2 The tax effects of timing differences that resulted in changes in deferred  For the year ended For the year ended
tax are as follows: Match 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Fair valuation of investment in mutual funds 94,97,264 80,98,506
Unwinding of security deposit paid 2,734 (4,933)
Interest accrued on preference shares issued (Adjustment pursuant to Ind-AS) (15,15,489) (22,74,602)
Difference between accounting base and tax base of tangible & Intangible assets 4,92278 (53,615)
Unwinding of security deposit received 24,556
Temporary differences on benefit obligations (12,09,115)
Others temporary differences (2,69,049)
MAT Credit of the earlier year charged off 40,14,550 -
MAT Credit (6,00,000) (25,40,0060)
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income (1,72,924) (2,41,163)
1,02,64,805 29,84,134

27.3. Deferred tax assets arising from the carty forward of unused tax losses not are recognised in these financial statements as there no
convincing evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future against which the unused tax losses can be utilised by the

Company, which is considered appropuriate by the Management.

27.4. The effective tax rate applicable to the company for the subsequent years is reduced from 30.90% to 26% as per the recent
amendments to Income Tax Law. Accordingly, amended rate has been considered for the computation of Deferred Tax.

This space has been intentionall

left blank
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28. Disclosure of Interest in subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates:

28.1. Disclosure of Interest in the following subsidiaries:

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 investments
() “Zaari Infra Middle Fast 1id UAT- 100% 100% Line by hne

28.2. Disclosure of Interest in the following associates:

consolidation

Name Country Ownership Interest of ZIIL (%) Method used to
of As at As at account for
Incorporation 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 investments
(@) Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited India 25% 25% Lquity Accounting
(1) Darshan Nirman Private Limited India 25% 25% Equity Accounting
(i) Pranat Nikctan Private Limited India 25% 25% Fquity Accounting
Also, refer Note 2(a) (1) for detailed disclosure and accounting treatment.
(b.) Information regarding Associates:
i. Carrying amount of investment in Associates As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Darshan Nirmaan Private Timited (3,947) 7407
Pranati Nirmaan Private Limited 2,464 6,954
Brajbbumi Nirmaan Private Limited 23.07,75,581 23,11,99,051
ii. Share of Profit/ (loss) of Associates As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited (11,354) (+,500)
Pranati Nirmaan Private Limited (4,490) (4,750)
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited (4,23,470) (16,45,287)

Summarised financial information of the joint ventures, based on its Ind AS financial statements and reconciliation with the carrying amount

of the investment in consolidated financial statements are set out below:

(a) DARSHAN NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 2,76,53,332 2,76,60,546
Non-current financial Habilitics (2,78,13,554) (2,77,75,350)
Equity (1,60,222) (1,14,804)

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Asscts (40,053) (28,701)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 36,108 36,108
Carrying amount of the investment (3,947) 7,407

ii. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Other Expenses (45,417) (18,000)
Profit/(loss) before tax (45,417) (18,000)
Income tax {expense)/credit - -
Profit/(loss) for the year (45,417) (18,000)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income (45,417) (18,000)
Proportion of the Group’s share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/(loss) for the year (11,354) (4,500)




(b) PRANATI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current assets, including cash and cash equivalents 21094256 2.16,96,756
Non-current financial habilities (2,18,30,310) (2,18,14.850)
Equity . (1,36,054) (1,18,094)
Proportion of the Group™s ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Asscts (34,014 (29,524)
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 36,477 36,477
Carrying amount of the investment 2,464 6,954
ii. Summarised Profit and Loss Statement For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Oxther Bxpenses (17,960 (19,000)
Profit/(loss) before tax (17,960) (19,000)
Income tax (expense)/credit - -
Profit/ (loss) for the year (17,960) (19,000)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income (17,960) (19,000)
Proportion of the Group’s share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/ (loss) for the year (4,490) (4,750)

(c) BRAJBHUMI NIRMAAN PRIVATE LIMITED

i. Summarised Balance Sheet As at As at

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Current asscts, including cash and cash cquivalents Rs. 34,75,504/-
(March 31 2017: Rs.21,74,920/-) 1,57,36,81,804 1,43,28,56,028
Non-current asscts 51,112,707 57,72,159
Current labilities including financial habilities (1,01,72,67,296) (83,95,92,095)
Non current financial liabilities (22,50,27,689) (26,08,42,599)
Less: Deemed Fquity (4,21,53,500) (4,21,53,500)
Equity 29,43,46,116 29,60,39,993
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 25% 25%
Group's Share in Net Assets 7,35,86,529 7,40,09,998
Value of Goodwill on consolidation 15,99,00,867 15,99,00,867
Adjustments for unrealised profits (27,11,815) (27,11,815)
Carrying amount of the investment 23,07,75,581 23,11,99,051
Summarised Profit and Loss Statement For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Revenue 65,84,100 2,32,49,500
Orther Tncome 1,59,000 1,70,102

67,43,100 2,34,19,602
Purchase of Stock in trade 14,11,18,760) (17,07,28,820)
Change in inventories of finished goods, work i progress and stock in rrade) 13,46,53,510 14,72,85,354
Limployce Benefirs Fxpense (80,361) (28,299)
Finance Cost (3,51,268) -
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,21,697) (2,08,124)
Other Lxpenses (12,29,585) (15,22,280)
(83,48,167) (2,52,02,169)

Profit/ (loss) before tax (16,05,067) (17,82,567)
Tncome tax (expensc)/credit (88,811) (47,98,581)
Profit for the year (16,93,878) (65,81,148)
Other Comprehensive Inconte - -
Total comprehensive income (16,93,878) (65,81,148)
Proportion of the Group’s share 25% 25%
Group’s share of profit/ (loss) for the year (4,23,470) (16,45,287)




29. Commitments and Contingencies

29.1. Leases

Operating lease - as lessee

The Company has taken office premises on an 11 Year operating lease. ‘The lease rentals recognized in the Income & Fxpenditure account for
the vear are Rs.1,16,41,104/- (excluding taxes) (2017: Rs. 57,72,792/-) . The furure lease payments of operaning fease are as given below. Leasc
Rentals charged to the profit and loss statement and obligations on long term non-cancellable operating leases payable as per the rentals stared in
the respective lease agreements:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Lease rentals recognized during the period 1,16,41,104 57,72,792
Lease Obligadons
- Within one year 1,22,75,046 1,16,41,104
- After one year but not more than five years 5,53,33,873 5,27,76,580
- More than five years 3,21,96,950 4,70,28,388

29.2. Contingent Liabilities
(@ Dividend hability on Non Convertible redeemable cumulative preference shares 2,94,61,231 1,52,54,704
@) 1S demand under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as per TRACEES, not acknowledged as debt. 8,22,298 -

(1) As per the audited consolidated Ind AS Financial statements of Bragbhumi Nirmaan Private

Limited an associate entity, disputed Income Tax demand pertaining to AY.2015-16 (7Y 2014- 4,27,66,240 B
15) pending before Commissioner Income Tax (Appeals) Kolkata. Against this demand,

Company has deposited Rs.25,00,000/-

(iv) As per the audited consolidated Ind AS Financial statements of Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited, an associate company the crstwhile
landowners have todged cases against that Company for the procession of land. The Company is assessing the impact of these cases. TTowever,
the Management ts of the view that tmpact, if any will be insignificant.

(v) As per the audited consolidated Ind AS Financial statements of Darshan Nirman Private Limited, an associate company few cases have been
filed i the court of Tehsildar, Mathura in respect of some of the land purchased by the Company. The Company's Management is of the view
that impact of these cases will be insignificant and will not affect the tide over the land held by the Company.

29.3. Capital and Other Commitments

i) Vstimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on Project construction and development aggregates to Rs.41,22,99,037/-

(2017:Rs.52,55,83,187/-).

30. Eamnings Per Share (""EPS")

Basic Earnings Per share {15PS) amounts are caleulated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the
weighted average number of Fguity shares outstanding during the year. There are no dilutive potential equity shares, accordingly the Diluted BPS
are also calculated by dividing the profir attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during as at
the end year.

The following reflects the income and share data used i the computation of basic and diluted EPS ¢

Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Profit before OCT attributable to equity holders of the company (3,08,67,867) (2,38,36,302)
Weighted Average number of equity shares used for computing EPS (Basic & Diluted) 4.,65,50,000 4,65,50,000

BFarning/(ILoss) Per Share (Basic and Diluted) (Rs.) (0.66) 0.51)

Face value per share (Rs)) 10.00 10.00
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31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial Nabilitics, comprise of Toans and borrowings, trade and other pavables, security deposits, and employec
dues. The main parpose of these financial liabilides 15 to finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support 1es
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other recetvables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive

direedy from its operations,

The Company is exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. ‘The Company’s senior management oversees the management of thes

risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by the finance team that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk
governance framework for the Company. Further, the company is predominanty into the real estate sector which 1 subject to The Real
Fstate (Regulaton and Development) Act, 2016 (RERA).

31.1. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will flucruate because of changes in market prices,
Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as cquity price risk and commodity

risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, deposits and investments 10 mutual funds.

(i.) Interest rate risk:

Interest rate risk 18 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes i market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt
obligations with floating interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings. Term T.oan
facility from I‘ederal Bank and Short term loan facility from TCICT Bank Limited 1s subject to floating rate of interest based on MCLR,
while the borrowings from the related entitics and borrowings by subsidiary carry interest ar a fixed rates.

Interest sensitivity analysis Outstanding Increase/ Effect on profit
Loan facility decrease in before tax
subject to basis points

floating rates

For the year ended 31 March 2018

Increase i base points 1,39,88,63,294 +50 69,94,316
Decrease in base points 1,39,88,03,294 -50 (69,94,310)
For the year ended 31 March 2017

Increase in base points 1,06,48,63,295 +50 53,24,316
Decreasc in base points 1,06,48,63,295 -50 (53,24,310)

(ii.) Foreign currency risk:

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in forcign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating
activitics (when revenue or expense is denominated in a forcign currency) and the Company’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

There is no significant currency risk as substantially all financial asscts and financial habilitics are denominated in Indian Rupees, except

for investment in wholly owned subsidiary which is denominated in foreign currency.
2 P, ta R

(iii.) Equity price risk
The Company’s non-listed cquity sceurities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the
mvestment securities. The Company’s Board of Directors reviews and approves all Investment decisions.

31.2. Credit risk
Credit risk s the risk that counterparty will not mecet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading o a
financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables) and from its financing,
activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions, forcign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.
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NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2018

(Amount in Rupees, except otherwise stated)

Trade receivables
Sale of Flats & Villas:

Customer eredit risk is managed by " CRNT tecam

subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and comrol relating to
customer credit risk management. Qutstanding customer dues with respeet to Customers demands are regulardy monitored for proactive
¢ included under 'Unbilled Revenue' computed as per the revenue recognition norms

actions. The unpaid customers demands
stipulared in Guidance note on Real state Transactions ( for the entities to whom Ind AS is applicable) issued by The Instrue of
Chartered Accountants of Tndia to the extent such demands related to projects in progress. In respect of completed projects such

demands are included under trade recetvables.

Development Management Fees:
Apart from real estare activities, the Company also provides Project Development services. The Trade Recetvables includes dues from
these activities which is aggregared to Rs, +4,67,14,322/- (2017: Rs 19,54,01,900)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for these entties. The Company does not hold
collaterals as security. The Company cevaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as Nil, as its customers arc
related and are part of the same group and with respect of sale of flats & villas the sale deed is executed only after the realisation.

31.3. Liquidity risk

The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool.
The Company’s objective is to maintain balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank loans and Debt
Preference Shares. The Company is in the process of assessing the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debr preference

shares and it is of the opinion that had the same been assessed the effect of the same would be insignificant.

The management expects to renew/rollover all of the short term debts/borrowings that are falling due in next 12 months. Further the
Company is confident of increased operational cash inflows from bookings of flats/villas and s also ensured of continued support from

its TTolding/ Associate Companies and the Promoters.

31.4. Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure their
ability to continue as going concern and maximise the sharcholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in cconomic conditions and the requirements of
the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the dividend payment to sharcholders,
return capital to sharcholders or issue new shares. The company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total

capital plus net debt.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted
payments as at 31 March, 2018:

Particulars On demand < 3 month 3 to 12 months 1to 3 years > 3 years Total
Borrowings - 27.33,00,000 52,92,98,065 1,86,3857,188 - 2,60,64,55,252
(Incd. Dbt portion of Prefercace Shares)

Trade payables - 5,27,18,514 10,50,52,048 1,43,78,260 10,00,000 17,31,48,822
Ovther financial liabilities - 88,50,593 85,18,432 5,98,76,890 27,58,008 8,00,03,923
Total - 33,48,69,107 64,28,68,544 1,93,81,12,337 37,58,008 2,91,96,07,997

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments as at 31 March, 2017:

Particulars On demand < 3 month 3 to 12 months 1to 3 years > 3 years Total
Borrowings - - 99,68,07,083 1,16,10,17,533 - 2,15,78,24,616
(Tizeh Debt poriion of Preference Shares)

T'rade payables - 2,75,23,100 15,40,15,389 3,97,13,676 - 22,12,52,171
Ovther financial habilities - 1,22,79,930 1,51,48,363 - - 2,74,28,293

Total - 3,98,03,036  1,16,59,70,835  1,20,07,31,209 R 2,40,65,05,080
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32, Related Party Disclosures

32.1. List of Related Parties and nature of relationship where control exists;

Holding Company Zuari Global Limited
Subsidiary Zuari Tnfra Middle East Limited
Step down Subsidiary Zuari Tnfraworld SJM Properties LLC (formerly SJM Elysium Properties LLC)

Fellow Subsidiaries Zuart Management Services Limited

Simon India Limited

Zuari Finserv Pet. Ltd. {erst. Zuari Investment Lid. demerged weef. 19.11.2017)
Associates Brajbhum: Nirmaan Private Limited

Darshan Nirmaan Private Limited

Pranati Niketan Private Limited

Mr. Alok Banerjee, Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer

Mr. Krishan Kumar Gupta, Independent Director

Mr. Vishwajit Kumar Sinha, Non Executive Director (resigned w.c.f. 24.03.2018)
M. Sunil Sethy, Independent Director

Mr.Narayanan Suresh Krishnan, Director

Key Management Personnel

Mr. C G Ramegowda, Company sceretary
Mr. Saroj Kumar Poddar

Director of holding company

32.2. Transactions with related parties:

March 31, 2018

Particulars Year ended Year ended March
March 31, 2018 31, 2017
i |Payment made on our behalf of the Company:
Zaart Global Limited 2,84,625 -
ii {Service Charges / Management Fees Paid
Zuart Finserv Pyt Ltd, (erstwhile Zuan Investment Led. demerged we £ 19.11.2017) 5,000 31,500
iii |Service Charges / Management Fees Income
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited - 75,00,000
Zuari Global Limited 2,19,00,851 -
iv |Inter-Corporate Deposits Taken - Liability
Zuari Global Limited
- Accepted 11,08,00,000 4,00,00,000
- Repayment 1,48,00,000 7,60,00,000
v {Interest on ICD received (Expenses)
Zuari Global Limited 12,08,02,388 97,43,781
vi |Reimbursement of Expenses received/receivable
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 1,00,37,361 26,66,159
Naote: Transactions during the year ended 2018 15 exclusive of taxes
32.3. Key management personnel compensation:
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2017

i, Short-term employee benefits

Mr. Alok Banerjee, Chief Exceutive Officer 99,78,338 93,21,328
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal, Chicf Financial officer 22,39,661 19,04,460
Mr. C G Ramegowda, Company secretary 12,62,986 2,99,108
ii. Retirement benefits (Provident fund and Gratuity)
Mr, Alok Bancrjee, Chief Exceutive Officer 5,84,568 543,784
Mr. Anshul Amit Bansal, Chief Financial officer 1,32,183 1,12,515
Mr. C G Ramegowda, Company secretary 74,244 17,506
i, Sitting fees
Directors sitting fees to Non-executive Directors 5,35,000 5,72,500
‘Total compensation 1,48,06,980 1,27,71,201
32.4. Year-end balances
i. Trade payable As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Zuari Global Limited - 1,11,13,022
Simon Tndia Limited 36,92,844 36,92,844
Zuari Finserv Private Limited - 14,84,500
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MARCH, 2018
(Amount in Rupecs, unless otherwise stated)

i, Oter payable " Asat Asat
; March 31,2018 . March 31, 2017
Alok Banetiee e T T 12,39,782 737,601
Anshul Amit Bansal ) 400,867 1,20,037;
i CG Ramegowda 82,847 92,92
“Zvari Global Limited o - 2,85,625 -
'iii. Trade reccivable o As at “ As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
‘Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited o 4,04,01,900 4,04,01,000
Zuari Global Limited o 65,49,021 -
1v Expenses Recoverable As at As at
‘ March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited 1,57,32,604 86,01,275
’ lobal Limieed, T o 1348531 | -
. e
‘. March 31, 2018 | March 31,2017
Zuati Global i 22,08,00,000 12,48.00,000
‘vi. Other year end balances - As at Asat

March 31, ?018

{Included in Project Work-in-Progress

March 31, 2017

gZivari Global Limited.

iService Income accrued

25.98,51,787

| 21,56,74,893 |

32.5.Terms and conditions

1,35,000

T

Al transactions with related partics are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and in the normal course of

husiness.
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33: Fair values

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Group’s financial instruments, other than
> b ying y

those with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Pardculars Carrying value Fair value
As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017 | As at 31 March 2018  As at 31 March 2017
(a.) Financial assets

() FVPL financial instruments: .

Un-Quoted mutual funds 97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750 97,76,48,786 43,36,21,750

Preference Shares held in Associate Company 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692 6,54,14,692

(1) Amortised Cost:

Sceurity deposits 26,69,046 24,77,035 26,69,046 24,77,035
Total 1,04,57,32,524 50,15,13,477 1,04,57,32,524 50,15,13,477
(b.) Financial liabilities

(. ) Amortised Cost:

Preference shares (debt portion) 8,14,75,750 5.61,54,238 8,14,75,750 5,61,54,238

Security deposit towards sub lease 12,77,0068 - 12,77,068 -

1C1CT Bank Led - Term Loan 15.,00,00,000 - 15,00,00,000 -

Federal Bank 1.td-"I'erm T.oan 1,24,88,63,294 1,06,48,63,295 1,24,88,63,294 1,06,48,63,295

State Bank of India, Dubai 46,82,67,996 - 46,82,67,996 -

Short-term loan from National bank of I'ujatrah 2,66,17,500 - 2.66,17,500 -

Real Hstate loan from National bank of Tfujairah 70,48,31,400 70,12,56,600 70,48,31,400 70,12,56,600
Total 2,68,13,33,008 1,82,22,74,133 2,68,13,33,008 1,82,22,74,133

Other Notes:

(1) The management assessed that cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, retention money, inter corporate
deposits, loan to related party and trade payables approsimate their carryving amounts largely due to the short-term maturitics of these
mstruments. The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities s included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a

current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
(i) The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

(a.) Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate Borrowings are cvaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest Rates, specific
country risk factors, individual creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristies of the financed project. Based on this cvaluation,
allowances are taken into account for the expected eredit losses of these receivables, if any.

. The fair values of the unquoted Preference shares have been estimated using a DCI model and considering the future cash outflow in
/ & 8

this regard, based on a independent valuation . The valuation requires management to make certain assumprions about the model inpurs,
including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and voladlity. The probabilitics of the various cstimatres within the range can be

reasonably assessed and are used i management’s estimate of fair value for these unquoted Preference shares.

{c.) The fair values of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings and loans approximates to their carrving amounts i.e., cost as at the end of the
reporting year. The own non-performance risk as at reporting was assessed to be insignificant.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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34, Fair Hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilitics.

(&) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets:

Fair value measurement using

Assets: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(i.) FVPL financial instruments:
Investments in Murual funds 97,76,48,780 - 97,76,48,786 -
(1,06,48,63,295) - (1,06,48,63,295) -
Preference shares held in Associate 6,54,14,692 - - 6,54,14,692
(6,54,14,692) - - (6,54,14,692)

@ii.) Amortised Cost:
Loan to Subsidiary - - . R

Security deposits 26,69,046 - 26,069,046 -
(24,77,035) - (24,77,035) -

(b.) Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for liabilities:

Fair value measurement using

Liabilities: Total Quoted prices in Significant Significant
active markets observable inputs  unobsecrvable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(i.) Borrowings:
I'ederal Bank Ltd - Term Loan 1,24,88,63,294 - 1,24,88,63,294 -
(1,06,48,63,295) (1,06,48,63,295)
1CICT Bank 1td - Term Loan 15,00,00,000 15,00,00,000
State Bank of India, Dubai 46,82,67,996 46,82,67,996
Short-term loan from National bank of IFujairah 2,66,17,500 2,66,17,500
Real [istate loan from National bank of Ifujairah 70,48,31,400 70,48,31,400
70,12,56,600 (70,12,56,600)
Preference shares (debt portion) 8,14,75,750 - - 8,14,75,750
(5,61,54,238) . . 5,61,54,238)

(ii.) Security deposit (At amortised cost)
Sceurity deposit towards sub Jease 12,77,068 - 12,77,068 -

(2.)  Amounts in the parenthesis represent previons year.
(i.) There have been no transfers betnween Lerel T and Level 2 during the year.

{c.) The Company has not valued the Financial guarantee that it has extended to its wholly owned subsidiary to its fair value. It is the opinion
of the Management that, had the same been valued it would not have any significant impact on these financial statements.

This space has been left blankintentionally
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35, Gratuity (Employment benefit plan)

As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2017

R Current Non-current Current Non-current
Value of Plan - Graruiey (Un-lunded) 3,28,819 33,32,169 1,82,650 28,19,725
3,28,819 33,32,169 1,82,650 28,19,725

Gratuity:
The Tolding company has a defined benehir gratuity plan. Fvery emplovee who has completed five years or more of service gets

gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for cach completed year of service.

The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the funded
© =

status and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the respective plans:

(i.) Net employee benefit expense (recognized in Employee Cost) for the year ended:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Current Service Cost 10,52,900 11,72,356
Past Service cost-(non vested benefits) 2,460 -
Past Service cost-(vested benefits) 1,81,164 -
Net Interest Cost 1,97,179 1,90,674
(ii.) Amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income for the year ended:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
(Gain)/loss from change in demographic assumptions - -
{Gain)/loss from change in financial assumptions (2,26,549) 1,65,534
Paperience (gains) / losses (4,38,544) (8,95,943)
(iii.) Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Opening defined  obligation 30,02,375 27,443,159
Current service cost 10,52,900 11,72,356
Past Service cost-(non vested benefits) 2,460 -
Past Service cost-(vested benefits) 1,81,164 -
Interest cost 1,97,179 1,90,674
Contribution paid (1,09,997) (3,74,405)
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligations 6,65,093) (7,29.,409)
Defined benefit obligation 36,60,988 30,02,375
(iv.) The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:

As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017

Mortality TALN (20006-08) Ult.  TALM (2006-08) Ul
Interest / Discount Rate 7.48% 6.69%
Rate of increase in compensation 9% 9%
Expected average remaining service 9.16 9.02

Benefit of normal retirement considered as per Payment of Grawity Act, 1972

F-mployee Attrition Rate (Past Service)

Rs. 20,00,000

P50 0 1o 40 years: 8%

Rs. 10,00,000

PS: 0 to 40 years: 8%
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(v.) A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at the reporting date is as shown below:

Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2018 As at 31 March 2018
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level +1% mcrease -1%%0 decrease +1% increase -1% decrease
Impact on definedbenefit obligation 34,006,769 39,52,077 39,354,433 34,117,247
Gratuity Plan As at 31 March 2017 As at 31 March 2017
Assumptions Discount rate Future salary increases
Sensitivity Level +1% increase -1%% decrcase +1% increase -1% decrease
Impact on definedbencefit obligation 27.89,367 32,47,185 32,19,083 27,99,040

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a

result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Within the next 12 months 3,28,819 1,82,650
Between 2 and 5 years 15,19,877 15,69,335
Between 5 and 10 years 24,65,278 3254386
Total expected payments 43,13,974 50,06,371

Note: The above disclosures are based on the valuation report by the independent actuary and relied upon by the auditors.

35.1. 1n case of Yuari Infra Middle Tiast Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary company the provision for the lability to staff end of
service gratuity is computed assuming that all employcees were to leave as of the reporting date. The management is of the opinion that
no significant difference would have arisen had the Hability been caleulated on an acruarial basis as salary inflation and discount rates

are hkely to have approximately cqual and opposite effects.

This space has been left blank intentionally
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ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rupees, except otherwise stated)

37. Segment Information

Information regarding Operating Segment Reporting as per Ind AS-108

The Company operates inonly one segment (¢, real estate sector )

management services and thus cotive business has been considered as a single operating component by the management.

which consists of development of properties and rendering development

Geographical information Revenue from operations

Non-current assets

For the vear ended For the vear ended As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
India 6,63,28,337 12,57,79,786 11,56,40,090 31,20,65,673
Outside India - - 39,05,39,598 1,82,70,330
6,63,28,337 12,57,79,786 50,61,79,688 33,03,36,003

Note:

(1) Segment Assets disclosed above includes Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 131 7,539/} being capital work-in-progress.

(i) Non-current assets disclosed above are excluding Tnvestment in subsidiaries & Assodiates, financial insouments, deferred mx assets, post-

cmpi()ynmm benefit assets.

37.2. Revenue from the customers contributing more than 10% of the total revenue are given below:

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Zuari Global Limited 2,19,00,851 -
Swiss Cottage Infraworld 82,00,000 -
Brajbhumi Nirmaan Private Limited - 98,20,420
Total 3,01,00,851 98,20,420

38. Disclosures relating to Projects:

Particulars

For the year ended 31st
March, 2018

For the year ended
31st March, 2017

Project revenue recognized as revenue in the reporting period

Aggregate amount of costs incurred and profits recognised (less recognised
losses) upto the reporting date.

Amount of advance recetved on project under progress

Amount of work in progress and the value of inventories

Ixcess of revenue recognised over actual bills raised (unbilled revenue) *
Method used to determine project revenue recognised during the year

Method used to determine the stage of completion of projects i progress

3,62,27,486
2,85,68,66,180

19,66,90,945
2,92,03,16,979
1,80,72,074
Refer Note 2 (3)
Refer Note 2 ()

11,78,34,366
2,07,93,99,270

22,04,32,729
2,18,34,73,943
24,55,99,582
Refer Note 2 )
Refer Note 2 ()

* Does not include Rs.13,90,03,256/- receivable towards completed projects which are pending exceution of sale deeds and are reported under trade

recetvable in Note 9.

39, Foreign Currency Exposure:
(i) The Company has not entered into any forward contracts to hedge the Foreign currency risk.

(i1.) Un-hedged Forcign currency exposures as the reporting date is given below:

Nature of Exposure Currency As at 31.03.2018 As at 31.03.2017

Trade and Other Payables AED 17,43,777 1,11,57,562
INR 3,09,43,323 19,69,86,757

40. Figures pertaining to subsidiary and associate companies have been reclassificd wherever necessary to bring in lince with the parent Company's

financial statcments.

41. Goodwill

Goodwill appearing in the Consolidated Financial Statements represents the goodwill on consolidation reported in the audited consolidated

Financial Statements of the subsidiary company in respect of Zuari Tnfraworld SPM Flysium Properties LLC (Formerly known as S]M Elysium

Properties LLCY as per the derails given below.

Particulars

As at 31.03.2018

As at 31.03.2017

Goodwill on consolidation

58,74,579

58,74,579




ZUARI INFRAWORLD INDIA LIMITED
NOTES FORMING INTEGRAL PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Amount in Rupees, exeept otherwise stated)

42. In the opinton of the Management none of the assets, other than fixed assets, have a value lower on realisation i the ordinary course of
business than the amount at which they are stated in these finanaal statements. Accounts of most of the Trade Payables |, Trade Receivables, loans
& advances and Cusromer Advances are subject to confirmatons.

The accompanying fiotes forms an integral part of the standalone financial statements

A per onr report of the even date attached

For and behalf of the Board of Directors of I'or VARMA & VARMA
Zuari Infraworld India Limited Chartered Accountants
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Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018
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Chicef Financial Officer Company Sccretary

Place: Gurgaon
Date: 21 May, 2018




